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(50,608) (25,467)

4 (432) (515)
12 339 (64)
5 56,188 188,187
(10,422) (163,569)

8,808 3,852

3,873 2,424

8 (309) (267)
10 (1,817) (1,191)
(2,126) (1,458)

1,747 966

11 (442) (259)
1,305 707
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12,13,14 17,775 32,816
17,775 88,002
12,13 891,066 2,216,214
12,13,14 67,909 124,078
12,13,15 570 380
11 12 114
12,13,16 113,463 96,054
1,073,020 2,436,840
1,090,795 2,524,842
17,26 8,284 8,366
26 1,321 1,321
26 13,283 11,019
18 3,555 19,079
26,443 39,785
13,19 53,230 92,979
13,20 437,746 522,730
13,14 134,295 115,792
11 4,050 3,133
629,321 734,634
13 149,045 1,336,509
13,19 4,057 6,900
13,20 232,495 278,586
13,14 41,709 35,568
13,21 7,725 92,860
435,031 1,750,423
1,064,352 2,485,057
1,090,795 2,524,842
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(82) - - 82 - -

- - - - (16,950) (16,950)
8,284 1,321 13,165 118 3,555 26,443
7,433 1,321 14,528 969 18,256 42,507
- - - - 707 707

_ - (3,545) - 116 (3,429)

- - (3,545) - 823 @,722)
933 - - (933) - -
8,366 1,321 10,983 36 19,079 39,785

121
2,182
116 3,545
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(78,394)
285

1,380,334
(1,187,464)
71,210
24,644
(17,307)
(85,135)

707

114,958
80

(343,337)
465,424
(53,946)
(58,301)

45,627
83,324

109,478

254,536

170,126
(42,586)

(219,873)
(16,950)

244,283
(22,331)

(476,593)

(109,283)

(254,641)
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®
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(105)
41
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(112,011)
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(230)
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913,941 (232,310) 119,685 - 801,316
1,036,100 (254,641) 119,736 - 901,195
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14 14
2025 31 2024 31
(132) (134)
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(46) (51)
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(©) (€D)
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an (22)
(29) (29)
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A-
BBB-
BB-
B+

2025
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892,855
102,884

98

996,309
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31
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2,275,776
88,206
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2,364,362

431

ccC
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BBB+ / BBB- 603,963 - - 603,963
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cce - - - -
cC /D - - - -
892,855 - - 892,855
(98) - - (98)
892,757 - - 892,757
2024 31
ARA / A- 443,550 - - 443,550
BBB+ / BBB- 1,832,226 - - 1,832,226
BB+ / BB- - - - -
B+ / B- - - - -
cce - - - -
cC/D - - - -
2,275,776 - - 2,275,776
(431) - - (431)
2,275,345 - - 2,275,345
2025 31

94 337 431

(98) (338) (436)

24 73 97

4 2 6

24 74 98

(333)

®

(339)
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2024 31

204 163 367
107) (163) (270)
62 337 399
(65) - (65)
94 337 431
64

64
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2025 31
891,066 - - - 891,066
- 85,684 - - 85,684
570 - - - 570
- 102,884 - - - 102,884
994,520 85,684 - - 1,080,204
- - 57,287 - 57,287
- - - 670,241 670,241
- - 149,045 - 149,045
- 176,004 - - 176,004
- - - 6,030 - 6,030
- 176,004 212,362 670,241 1,058,607
2024 31
2,271,400 - - - 2,271,400
- 156,894 - - 156,894
380 - - - 380
- 88,206 - - - 88,206
2,359,986 156,894 - - 2,516,880
- - 99,879 - 99,879
- - - 801,316 801,316
- - 1,336,509 - 1,336,509
- 151,360 - - 151,360
- - - 82,522 - 82,522
- 151,360 1,518,910 801,316 2,471,586
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2025 31 2024 31

10,795 24,618

6,832 15,087

39,564 42,546

27,985 73,440

508 1,203

85,684 156,894

109,239 97,133

20,385 22,497

27,738 14,111

15,835 15,550

2,807 2,069

176,004 151,360

2025 31 2024 31

219,195 2,161,979

302,158 411,088

213,588 200,454

101,300 103,500

104,139 132,743

940,380 3,009,764
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113,000

373

16,950

454

2025 31 2024 31
102,884 88,206
10,579 7,848
113,463 96,054
1SDA
315,000
2025 31 2024 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
161.480 163.065
8,284 8,366
2025 31 2024 31
8,402 8,402
8,284 8,366
118 36
113,000 150,000
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2025 31 2024 31
92,979 120,940
(27,132) (14,542)
(12,611) (13,470)
(6) 51
53,230 92,979
2025 31 2024 31
6,900 1,219
(15,454) (7,789)
12,611 13,470
4,057 6,900
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2025 31
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2024 31

522,730
123,940

(95,061)

(79,275)

(10,956)

(20,594)

(3,078)
40

552,001
179,854
(145,664)
(96,668)
11,470
17,894
4,142
(299)

437,746

522,730

2025 31

2024 31

278,586

46,186
(124,812)

79,275
(618)
(46,387)

176

89

361,940
64,429
(330,929)
96,668
6,401
79,250
654
173

232,495

278,586

14,802

24

258,992
350,077

2025 31

308,652

2,941
17,743

2024 31

6,030
1,695

82,522
10,338

7,725

92,860

1SDA
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947,352
2,043,343
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CFO
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. ESG

NHI
S&P NHI BBB+
NHI
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S&P
NHI

1SDA

2.3 e

ORM

RCSA
ORM
RCSA
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30

75/202



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

2025 31
30 90
30 90
- 411,797 430,623 52,716 - - 895,136
- 411,797 430,623 52,716 - - 895,136
- 411,797 430,623 52,716 - - 895,136
2024 31
30 90
30 90
- 825,530 1,371,135 31,300 58,099 - 2,286,064
- 825,530 1,371,135 31,300 58,099 - 2,286,064
- 825,530 1,371,135 31,300 58,099 - 2,286,064
61.05 57.91
2025 31
30 90
30 90
- 245 289 5,247 12,268 59,405 77,454
143,180 13,937 11,906 89,074 329,728 236,454 824,279
- 75,007 75,267 - - - 150,274
143,180 89,189 87,462 94,321 341,996 295,859 1,052,007
143,180 89,189 87,462 94,321 341,996 295,859 1,052,007
2024 31
30 90
30 90
- 4,208 2,574 3,549 24,330 103,769 138,430
196,033 11,574 19,549 75,845 336,195 312,508 951,704
- 401,023 949,637 - - - 1,350,660
196,033 416,805 971,760 79,394 360,525 416,277 2,440,794
196,033 416,805 971,760 79,394 360,525 416,277 2,440,794
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2025 31
30 90
30 90
40,601 749 1,445 5,766 16,212 19,115 83,888
40,601 749 1,445 5,766 16,212 19,115 83,888
- 94,749 2,425 45,644 104,787 47,859 295,464
- (94,247) (2,309) 47,772) (172,407) (32,046) (348,781)
- 502 116 (2,128) (67,620) 15,813 (53,317)
40,601 1,251 1,561 3,638 (51,408) 34,928 30,571
2024 31
30 90
30 90
89,285 1,081 2,034 8,504 27,753 42,446 171,193
89,285 1,081 2,034 8,594 27,753 42,446 171,193
- 3,057,782 2,615 12,757 122,545 63,507 3,259,206
- (3,051,699) (2,262) (11,667) (170,180) (36,698)  (3,272,506)
- 6,083 353 1,090 (47,635) 26,809 (13,300)
89,285 7,164 2,387 9,684 (19,882) 69,255 157,893
2025 31
30 90
30 90
- 401,092 273,130 273,130 - - 947,352
- 401,092 273,130 273,130 - - 947,352
2024 31
30 90
30 90
- 513,043 563,487 840,881 125,932 - 2,043,343
- 513,043 563,487 840,881 125,932 - 2,043,343
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2025 31

53,230 49,402 .
2024 31

55,186 56,077 -

92,979 89,310 -
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2025 31 2024 31
85,684 - 79,931 5,753 156,894 - 143,676 13,218
10,795 - 9,998 797 24,618 - 23,967 651
6,832 - 2,609 4,223 15,087 - 4,214 10,873
39,564 - 39,025 539 42,546 - 41,164 1,382
27,985 - 27,985 - 73,440 - 73,440 -
508 - 314 194 1,203 - 891 312
85,684 - 79,931 5,753 156,894 - 143,676 13,218

2025 31 2024 31
176,004 - 162,103 13,901 151,360 - 136,141 15,219
109,239 - 109,178 61 97,133 - 96,700 433
20,385 - 12,164 8,221 22,497 - 9,468 13,029
27,738 - 22,240 5,498 14,111 - 12,547 1,564
15,835 - 15,835 - 15,550 - 15,550 -
2,807 - 2,686 121 2,069 - 1,876 193
670,241 - 527,379 142,862 801,316 - 650,424 150,892
846,245 - 689,482 156,763 952,676 - 786,565 166,111
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2025 31
13,218 15,219 150,892
* (376) (646) (2,846)
- - 131,050
(6,351) 1,536 (84,280)
55 763 4,738
(793) (2,971) (56,692)
5,753 13,901 142,862
394 (6,563) 6,365
2024 31
11,848 20,427 209,431
* 10,628 (2,700) 12,889
- - 158,185
(7,650) (639) (143,443)
222 4,103 56,927
(1,830) (5,972) (143,097)
13,218 15,219 150,892
9,754 (7,246) (2,705)
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0TC
55 222 763
161
763
793 1,830 2,971

1,100

2,964
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DCF

CFO

82/202



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

OooooOodd
2025 31
*
797 61 DCF %)  11.59-12.07%
4,223 8,221 DCF 2.04-4.16%
%)  9.82-18.76%
(bp)  44.17-92.47bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.35-0.98
539 5,498 DCF 0.00-4.49%
(%)  16.83-51.53%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.72-0.92
194 121 DCF %) 0.24-1.42%
%) 35-35%
- 142,862 DCF
2.04-3.56%

%)  9.82-18.77%
(bp)  44.17-92.47bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.35-0.98

) 0.00-4.49%
(%)  16.83-51.53%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.72-0.92

) 0.24-1.42%
) 35-35%

5,753 156,763
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2024 31
*
651 433 DCF (%)  11.83-12.59%
10,873 13,029 DCF 3.36-3.88%
(%)  10.32-13.56%
(bp) 37.85-90.12bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.12-0.98
1,382 1,564 DCF 0.00-2.14%
(%)  16.98-63.80%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.63-0.91
312 193 DCF ) 0.26-1.40%
) 35-35%
- 150,892 DCF

3.36-3.36%
(%)  10.32-13.25%
(bp) 37.85-90.12bp
(-1.0 to 1.0) 0.12-0.98
%) 0.00-2.14%
(%)  16.80-63.80%
(-1.0 to 1.0) -0.63-0.91
%) 0.26-1.40%
%) 35-35%

13,218 166,111
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152 152

2025 31 2024 31
152 172

- (20)
152 152
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25
2025 31
€ ® (3)
83,814 83,814 (69,330) (6,030) 8,454
273,130 273,130 (284) - 272,846
356,944 356,944 (69,614) (6,030) 281,300
173,604 173,604 (69,614) (102,884) 1,106
173,604 173,604 (69,614) (102,884) 1,106
2024 31
€) ® (3)
155,764 155,764 (54,151) (82,118) 19,495
394,975 394,975 (295) - 394,680
550,739 550,739 (54,446) (82,118) 414,175
142,395 142,395 (54,446) (87,949) -
142,395 142,395 (54,446) (87,949) -
()
@
©)

1SDA
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2025 31 2024 31
8,284 8,366
1,321 1,321

118 36
9,723 9,723
57,287 99,879
53,230 92,979
4,057 6,900
670,241 801,316
437,746 522,730
232,495 278,586
149,045 1,336,509
149,045 1,336,509
886,296 2,247,427
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27
i NHI 15,017
8,955 NHI 400,000
1,465,600 NHI
399,900 464,300
( 11,016
)
ii. NHI
431
514 NHI
431 514
iii. 8,676
3,743 8,676
3,743
NHI
49 54
NHI 19 54
i 37,731
36,647
491,164 806,231
547,452 1,579,043
1,691
( 12,929 )
i.
103,224 70,834
1,034 (
19,475 )
iii. 1SDA
83,814
173,604 155,764
142,395
20,399 26,046 100
100 20,299
25,946
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97
106
69
80
132
108 132
108
221 14
52 31
102,884
88,206 6,030
82,522

28

29 -

1,305

2025

20
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

INCOME STATEMENT

{Millions of JPY) For the year ended

Hote 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest and similar income 3 S2.977 45,618
Interest and similar expense 3 {103,585) {71,088)
Met interest incomel{expense) (50,608) (25,46T)
Fee and commission expense 4 (432) (515)
Credit impairment gain/(loss) 12 33a (Bd)
Met trading income(loss) ] 56,188 188187
Mat gain/(loss) on financial liabilties designated
at fair value through profit or loss g8 (10,422) {163,569
Cther cperating gain'(loss) T 8,808 3,852
Met operating income 3873 2424
Salaries and social charges 8 (309 (267)
General and administratve expenses 10 (1,817 {1,181)
Total operating expenses (2.126) (1,458)
Profit!(loss) before tax 1,747 966
Taxation expense 11 (442) (259)
Profit!{loss) for the year 1,305 70T
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Milians of JPY) Far the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profitl lass) for the year 1,308 707

Other comprehensive incomelloss):
Iterns that will not be reclassified to income statement:
Change n fair value attributable to change in the credit resk of financial

liabilities designated at fair valwe through profit or loss (after tax) 2303 {3,429

Other comprehensive incomelloss) for the year after tax 2,303 {3,429}

Tetal comprehensive Incomelloss) for the year 3,608 {2,722}
3
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NOMURA EURCPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Millions. of JFY) Nete 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loans and advances to affiliates 1212 - 55,186
Derivative financial assets 1213,14 17,775 32,816
Total non-current assets 17,775 88,002
Loans and advances to affiliates 1213 891,086 2,216 14
Derivative financial assets 12,1314 B7 600 124,078
Cash and cash equivalents 121315 570 380
Icome tax receivable 11 12 114
Cther current assets 121316 113,463 96,054
Total current assets 1,073.020 2,436,840
Total assets 1,090,735 2,524,842
Issued and paid-up capital 17,26 §,284 8,366
Share premiurm 26 1,321 1321
Reserve 28 13,283 11,19
Retaned eamings 18 35585 19,079
Total shareholder's equity 26,443 39,785
Dbt issued and other borreaing 13,18 53,220 52979
Financial hakalities dessgnated at fair value

through profit or loss 13,20 43T 745 522730
Derivative financial [iabilities 13,14 124 295 115,792
Deferred tax liabilties 11 4,050 3,133
Total non-current liabilities 625,321 T 634
Borrowang from affiliates. 13 149,045 1,336,509
Dbt issued and other borrowing 1319 4,057 6,900
Financial liabilities designated at fair value

throwgh profit o loss 13,20 232,495 278,586
Derivatrve financial labilites 13,14 41,709 35,568
Cither current liabilities 13,21 7725 2 850
Total current liabilities 435,031 1,750,423
Total liabilities 1,064,352 2,485,057
Total shareholder's equity and liabilities 1,050,755 2,524 842

Statement of Financial Position is presented after appropriation of profit
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CHAMGES M EQUITY

Issued Currency Total
and paid- Share Own credit  translation Retained shareholder's
{Milons of JEY) up capital  premium reserve reserve earnings equity
As at 1 April 2024 8,365 1321 10,983 38 19,079 39,785
Profit/(loss) for the pericd - . N - 1.305 1305
Cther comprehansive
incomed(loss) - - 2182 - 1 2,303
Total comprehensive
incomeljloss) - - 2182 - 1428 3,808
Euro dencminated
capital exchange
valuaton (82) - - 82 -
Diwvidends paid to
sharehalders . . . - (16.950) (16,850
As at 31 March 2025
[Mote 17) 8,284 1.321 13,165 118 3,555 26,443
Issued and Currency Total
paid-up Share Own credit  translation Retained  shareholder's
(Millions of JPY) capital premium reserve reserve eamings equity
As at1 April 2023 7433 1,324 14,528 SES 18,258 42 507
Profit/{loss) for the period - - - - 707 707
Cither comprehensive
incormed(lass) . - {3,545) - 116 (2.429)
Total com prehensive
imcomel{loss) - - (3.545) - 823 [2,722)
Eurg denominated
capital exchange
valuation a33 - . (933) . .
Dividends paid to
sharehalders - - - - -
As at 31 March 2024
{Mote 17) 8,366 1,31 10,983 36 19,073 39,785

The realized own credit amount of JFY 121 million gain after tax is recorded under Retained eamings as part of Other
comprehensive incomef(loss) and the unrealized own credit amount of JBY 2,182 million gain after tax is recorded under
Reserve as part of Cther comprehensve incomel(loss) for the year ended 31 March 2025, [JPY 116 million gain after tax
and JFY 3 545 million loss after tax respectively for the year ended 31 March 2024)

The currency translation reserve is a non-distributable legal reserve in accordance with Part 2 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code. On the other hand, the own credit reserve is not a legal resemrve.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
[Millicns of JPY)

Operating activities
Praoft/{loss) for the year

Adjustments for;
Met (gain)fess from fmancing actvibies
Cthers

Operating assets and operating liabilities:
Decreasel/{increase) n loans and advances to affiliates
Increasel{decrease) in borrowang from affiliates
Decreasel(increase) in derivative financial assets
Increasel(decrease) in dervative financial liabilties
Decreasel/{increase) n aother operating assets
Increasel{decrease) in other operating kabilities

Net cash from operating activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at fair value
throwgh proft of loss

Redemption of debt issued and other barrowing
Redemgtion of financial kabilities designated at fair value
through profit of loss

Dividends paid to shareholders

Net cash from financing activities

et increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Met foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at period beginning

Cash and cash equivalents at period end

Operational cash flows
Interast paid

Interest receed

Tax (paid)/refunded
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For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1,305 o7
(78 304) 114,958
285 80
1,380,334 (343,337)
{1,187 464) 465424
71,210 (53,945)
24,644 (58,301)
(17,307 45 627
[85,133) B3 324
109,478 254 538
170,126 244 283
(42 588) (22,331)
(219,873) (476,503)
{16,5950) .
{109,283) (254.641)
185 {105)
(=) 41
380 444
570 380
{112,011) {70,173}
55191 44 528
(230) (307}
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

oOoOooodn

{Milions of JFY) Man-cash changes
1 April 2024 Cash flow Changes in fair 31 March 2025
values and effect of
changes in foreign
exchange rates Cther
Diebt issued and other borrowing 99 879 (42 SBE) (5 - 57 287
Financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss 801,316 (4% 747) (B1,328) = B70 241
Total liabilities from financing
activities 801,195 (52,333) (81,334) - 727,528
{Millions of JPY) Mon-cash changes
; Changes in fair
1 April 2023 Cash flow values and affect of 31 March 2024
changes in foreign
exchange rates Other
Debt issued and other borrowing 122,158 {22,331) 51 - 99,879
Fimancial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss. 513 841 (232 310} 118 685 801 316
Total liabilities from financing
activities 1,038,100 [254,641) 119,736 - 901,195
7
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate information

Momura Eurcpe Finance NV, (the “Company”) 5 a wholly owned subsidiary of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (NHIT), a
cofmgpany Incomporated in Japan and ksted in Japan, the United States of Amenca and Singapone, whazh 15 akko the
ulimate parent of the Company.

The Company, incorporated and demiciled in Amsterdam, the Netherdands, is a limited liability company under the
Dutch law and its registered office & at Rembrandt Tower, Amsteiplein 1, 1096 HA Amsterdam, the MNetherlands
{Chamber of Commerce number 33221681).

The Company's princigal achvity i 0 act as a funding entity for NHI and s subsidianes (collsctvely the “MNomura Group”
or "Group).

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 shall be submitted to the Annual General

Meebng of Sharehclders on 135 July 2023 for adoption. The sharehcider's meeting can reject the financial statements
But cannat amend them.

2.  Material accounting pelicies

241 Basis of accounting

The financal statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been prepared n accordance
with International Financial Reparting Standards ("IFRE") as adopted by the European Unicn ("EL"). The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with the requirements in Part 9 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code,

The financial staterments have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial instruments
and financial liabikbes designated at fair value through profit and loss, which have all been measured at far value.

The fnancial statements are presented in Japanese Yen ("JPY") and all values are rounded to the nearest million
{"Milkons of JFY™) except where otherwise stated.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis,

22  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparabon of the Company's financial statements requires managerment 1o make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
dischosures,

Eair valye of fi . :

A significant amount of udgements and estimates were applied to the fair value of certain financial assets and financial
labilbes. Varous valuation techniques are used to determne fair values of financial assets and financial liabdities,
where these fair values cannot be derived from an actve market. Observable market data is used in the valuation

models as far as feasible, If no observable data is available, a degree of judgement is required to determine fair values.
Detailed mlormatan about the fair value of financial instruments and valuation techniques ane set out in Mote 24,

Ly i .
The Company assesses expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at fair value
thraugh prafit o loss, together with loan commitments and financial guarantes contracts an a forward-laoking basis.
The Company recognises a koss allowance at each reporting date. Detailed information about the judgements and
estimates made by the Company when calculating expected credit losses are set out in Note 2.3

23  Summarny of material accounting policies

a) Foreign curmencies

The financial staterments are presented in JFY, which is the funcbonal and presentation curmency of the Company.
Foreign currency ransacions during the penod are translated at the rates of exchange on the date of the transaction

Subsequent to intial recognition monetary tems are transkated at closing rate and non-menetary berms at histoncal spot
rate at each reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities that are
manetary assets and monetary liabilties are recognised in the income statement
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b} Operating income
0} Interest income and expense

Interest ncome and expensa for all financial imstruments, except for those classified as derivatives held for trading and
financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or koss, are recognised under Interest and similar income or
Interest and samilar expense using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method.

The EIR methed is a methed of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or l@bility (or a group of assets
and liabikties) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant pericds. The EIR is the
rate that exactly dscounts the expected future cash payments or receipts through the expected Iife of the financial
instrument, or when appropriate, a shonter perniod, to the net carrying amount of the instrument This calculation
takes into account the impact of all fees and commissions, paid or received, directly atiributable to the transactions,
and discounts or premiums that are integral part of the EIR methed.

() Met fees and commSSon iNcome

Loan ongination fees are recognised in the income statement as an adjustment to the yield on the financial assets
cariied at amontssed cost using the EIR method.

Upfront fees received and paid on dervative financial instruments are recognised as part of the initial far value
measurement of the related financial instrument.

&) Falr value of financial Instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value, A deseription of the Company's policies
with regards to its application of fair value measurements to significant financial instruments is as fallows:

[0} Determination of fair values and fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as demvatives, at fair value at each balance sheat date. For
other financial instruments which are measured at amorised cost, fair values are disclosed in Maote 24,

Fair value & the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is basad on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the assat or transfer the liabilty takes place ather:

Im the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a pancipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Where quoted market prices or broker'dealer quotations are not available for financial instruments, prces for similar
instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of fair value. Such financial instrurments
are valued using medels with significant unobservable inputs such as correlation, long-dated volatility, or ather
unebservable inputs. Valuation pricing models consider contractual terms, position size, underlying asset prices,
interest rates, dividend rates, time value, valatibty and ather statistical measurements for the relevant instruments
or for instruments with simillar characteristics. These models also incorporate adjestments relating to market
liquidity adjustments. These adjustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The
valuation technique used maximises the use of market inputs and minimises the use of the Company-specific
inputs which are unobservable in the market.

Valuation pricing medels and their underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of unrealised gams and
losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing models or underlying assumplions could produce
ditferent fmancial results. Any changes in the fced income, equity, and foreign exchange and commedity markets
can impact the Company’'s estimates of fair value in the future, potentially affecting trading gains and losses and
also gains and losses on iinandal liabiites designated atfair value thraugh profitof loss, The Company’s estimates
of fair value may involee greater subjectivity due to the lack of transparent market data available upon which to
base assumpbtons of underlying valuation pricing models.

The Company applies exception in IFRS 13.48 to measure the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
on the basis of mid-price. For hybid instruments whede embedded dedvatives are separated and financial
instruments which are designated through profit or loss, the exposure on such instruments is offset by the hedging
derivatives.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting and all references to hedging in the notes to the financial
statements are to economic hedging.
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All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as held for trading
are recognised under Met trading incomei{loss)

(i) Recognition of day 1 gaing and losses

The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price {i.e. the fair value of consideration given or
recenved). However, in some cases, the fair value at inceplion will be based on a valuabon prcng model
incorporating only observable parameters in the market or on cther observable current market transactions in the
same instrument, without modification or repackaging. Where such valuation techniques are used to derve fair
values from market chservable inputs, the difference between fair value and the transaction price is initially
recognesed in the income statement.

‘Waluation techniques incorporating significant unobservable parameters may also be used to determine fair value
at inception. In such cases, the difference bebween the ransaction price and model value is only recognised in the
income staterment when the inputs become chsarvable or when the instrument is derecognised.

(i) Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

The Company seeks to minimize the market risks by entering into derivatve agreements to economically hedge
the exposures of medium term nates. The value of hedging derivative and the associated nate have the same
performance which offset each other, thus by applying the fair value option ("FVO) to notes the Company expects
to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation valatility.

Starting from 1 April 2018, the Company applies the FVD fo all newly issued notes under IFRS 8 The Company
manages and evaluates performance of financial liabilites (issued notes) in such a way that the measurement of the
porthoba of notes at far value thiowgh profit of loss provides mofe relvant infarrmation & isk management puiposes
and transparent understanding of the Company's financial statements.

dj Financial instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of IFRS 8 are divided into three classifications; those measured at amortised
cost, those measured at fair value through profit or loss and those measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income,

Fimancial liabdiies held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss, and all other financial habilities
are measured at amodtised cost unless the FVO is applied.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assats on initial recognition except equity instruments
and derivatives based on a combination of the entity's business model for managing the assets and the instruments’
contraciual cash fiow charactenistics. Even though the Company's financial assets may meet the criteria to be
classified at amortised cost of fair value through other comprehensive income, the Company may, at inital
recegnition, apply the FW0 to those financial assets if doing 50 eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
of recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “accounting mismatch”) that would etheratse arise from
measuring assets or labdites or recognising gains and losses on them on different bases.

[0} Financial assets

IFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except equity instruments and dervatives, to be assessed based on a
combination of the entity's business model for managing the assets and the instruments' contractual cash flow
characteristics. A financial asset is classified and subsequently measured at amortized cost unless designated
under FYO, if the financial asset is held in a Hold to Collect business model and the contractual cash flows are
Solely Payments of Prncipal and nterest.

Under this measurement category, the financial asset is measured at fair value at initial recognitbon minus the

principal repayments, plus of minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference bebtween that initial amount and the matunty amount and adpsted for any impairment allowance.

There are three business models identified under IFRS 9 for financial assets:
— Hold to Collect — Financial assets held with the objective to collect contractual cash flows

= Held to Collect and Sell = Financial assets held with the cbjective of both collecting contractual cash fiows and
selling financial assets.

= Other = Financial assets held with tradng intent or that do not meet the “Hald 1o Collect” and “Hokld to Collect and
Sell” qualifying critenia.
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The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective. Factors considered by the Company in determining the business model
for a group of assets include how the cash flows from these assets were collected, how risks are assessed and
managed. hawthe asset's performance = evaluated and reported to key management personnel and the fréguency,
value and teming of sales.

The Company manages a portfolio of financial assets through the Hald to Collect business model where all of the
follwing criteria ane met

- The porfolic is not held with trading intent or not managed on a fair value basis,

- The portfolic of financial assets is managed o realse cash flows solely through collecting contractual payments over
the life of the financial assets rather than managing the overall return on the portfolio by both holding and selling
financial assets; and

= Any sales of financial assets are expacted to be infrequent or nsignificant

| Principal In

To meet the Hold to Collect business model, the portfalio of financial assets are to be held by the Company with
the strategy of collecting cash fiows from the financial assets specified by contractual terms of the instrument. A
financial asset can only be measured at amortised cost where the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interest,

Principal for purpose of the SPPI test is defined as the fair valwe of the debt instrument at initial recognition and
therefore the contractual cash fiow characteristics is determined based on a comparison of contractual cash flows
to the amount actually invested. It is net necessarily the contractual par amount of the debt instrument.

The most significant elements of intarest within a basic lending arrangement are that it is consideration for the time
wvalue of money and credit risk. Interest may also include a profit margin

i) Financial iabdibes at amortised cost

Financial iabdities at amortised cost include the hest contract of certain medium term nates that are bifurcated and
other bomrowings. Financial labilities at amortised cost are inibally recognised on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the contract After initial measurement, these instruments are subsequently measured at
amaortised cost using the EIR method.

(i) Financial liabdibes designated at fair value through prefit or loss

Fimancial liabilibes classified in this category are those that have been designated by management as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the
inconsstent treatment that would cthersase arise from measunng the assels or labilities of recognizmg gains of
losses on themn on a different basis.

These instruments are measured initally at fair value and transaction costs are recognsed in prafit of loss, For
these instruments, far value changes attnbutable to the Company's credit risk are presented in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss, thereby eliminating volatility in profit or loss in
relation to own credit adjustments, All ather fair value changes are presented in profit or loss. Interest expenses,
gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and ransacton costs associated to the financial labilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under Met gainf(loss) on financial labdibes designated
at fair valug through proft or loss, except for the currency translation effect which is included in Net trading
income/(loss).

Loan commitments designated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are wathin the scope of IFRS
9, These lcan commitments are initially recognised on the date when the Comgany becomeas a party to the contract,
and subseguently measured at fair value with changes in fair value reported under Met gainf{loss) on financial
lakalities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

{v)  Derivative financial instruments

Fimancial instrurments at fair value through profit or loss include denvative financial instruments held for trading.
Fimancial assets and financial kabilites are classified as held for trading i (1) they are acguired or incurred
principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2) on initial recognition they are part of a portfolic
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattermn of short-term proft taking, o (3) they are derivatves, except for a denvatve that is a financial guarantee of
a designated and effective hedging instrument.
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The Company uses dervatives to economically hedge is interest and foreign exchange. All dervatives are
recognised on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract. Derivatives held for trading are initially
and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit of loss. Denvatives with
postive and negative faif values are presented as assets and kabilities, respectvely, in the statement of financial

position.

A dervative embedded in a hybrid instrument that alse includes a non-dervative host that s not a financial asset
is accounted for as a separate derivative if (1) its economic characteristics and risks are not clasely related to those
of the host; (2] a separate mstrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a denvative; and (2) the hybrid instrumeant is not measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit of loss.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

When a financial asset or financial Bakality is recegnised initially, the Company measures it at its fair value plus or
minws, in the case of a financial asset or financial liabiity not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial Eability.

Derecognition:

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired or when the
Company has transferred its rights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial labilty s replaced by anather fiom the same lender on substantially different terms, oF
the terms of an existing Bability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the ariginal kakility and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective camying
amounis is recegnised in the income statement

&) Impairment

Under IFRS 0, the Company is required to record a loss allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and othar
debt instruments net held at fair value through proft or loss, together with lcan commitments and financal
guarantee contracts. The loss allowance is measured based on the expected credit losses that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since arigination, inwhich case, the loss allbwance is measured based on
the expected credit losses that result from all pessible default events over the expected Iife of a financial instrurnent.

Expected credit losses should be determined using all reasonable and supportable informaton which is reasonably
available at the Company's reporting date without undue cost or effort, including information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditsans. The information used should reflect factors that are
specific to the obligor, general economic conditions and an assessment of bath the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the Company’s reporting date. Information that is available for financial reporting purposes
is always considered to be available without undue cost or effort

The general ECL impairment model is used to measure expected credit losses against the majarity of financial
instruments held by the Company which are subject to impairment through the ECL mpairment model under IFRS
8,

Expected credit losses represent the diference between the cash flows that the Company is entdled to recene in
accordance with the contractual terms of the financial instrument and the cash flows that the Company ultimately
expects to receive based on foliowing model

The measurement of expected credd losses under the ECL impairment model reflects:

*  An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible cutcomes;
The time value of money, and

* Reasonable and supportable information that is awvailable without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, cumrent conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Lifetime expected credit losses represant expected credit losses that would result from all possible default events
over the expected e of the financial instrument whereas 12 month expected credit losses are the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represent the expected credit losses that result from default events on a financial
instrurment that ane possible within the 12 months after the reparting date,
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In arder to determine whether 12 month or lifetme expected credit losses are used, each financial asset and off-
balance sheet financial instrument being individually or collectively assessed for impairment is classified at each
reparting date into one of following three stages of credit quality detenoration since the financal asset was initally
recognsed.

»  Stage 1 - Pedomming financial assets for which there has been no significant deterioratean in credit quality
since intial recognibon,

+  Stage 2 — Underperforming financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit quality
sinca initial recognition but which are not cred&-impaired; and

* Stage 3 - Mon-performing financial assets for which there has been a significant deterioration in credit quality
since intial recagnibon and which have become credit-impaired

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition is infially classified into stage 1 and is typically
subsequently cantinucusly monitored to determine whether a sgnificant increase n credit sk has occurred, at
which pomt the financml instrurment is reclassilied to stage 2. A determinabon of whether a significant increase in
credit risk has occurred at each reporting date wall primarily be through a comparison of the Momura Group's internal
credit rating applied to the financial instrument at acquisition, origination or issuance and the internal credit rating
currently assigned to the financial instrument at the reporting date. A financial instrument will be reclassified mto
stage 2 where the internal credit rating has declined by more than a specific number of notches (one to four)
depending on the level of rating assigned at iitial recognition. If there is a further detenoration in credit quality such
that the financial instrument becomes credi-impaired, the financial instrument is then reclassified into stage 3.

Internal ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-term capability and certainty of debt
repayment (creditworthiness) in addition to the fundamental conditions (fundamentals) of a given obligor or facility.
Internal ratings are reviewed regulary and on an ad-hoc Basis, to ensure that the credibworthiness of a given obligor
will be duly and timely taken inte account.

A stage 3 financial asset can only be classified out of stage 3 and into stage 2 or eventually stage 1 when it no
longer meets the definition of being credit-mpaired, namely when it is no longer probable that the Company will
nat be able to collect all principal and interest amounts due in accordance with the onginal or medified contractual
terms of the financial asset.

A financial asset s credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred since ongination or purchase namely and it is no longer probable
that the Company will be able to collect all principal and interest amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms of the financial asset. The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted (which is fully aligned with
the definition of credit-impaired) when there is failure of an obligor to make payments in full and on Bme of any
financial obligations, markedly disadvantagecus modification to a contractual term compared with the existing
obligation, bankruptcy filings, administration, receivership, liquidation or other winding-up or cessation of business
of an obligor ar other similar situations. n addition, there is a rebuttable presumption that regardless of the above
defination, default is deemed to occur and a financial instrument i credit-impaired when the financial nstrument 15
80 days or more past due.

A financial instrument will continue to be credit-impaired until the obligor cures the reasons for credit-impairment
of there has been a sustained observable pencd of repayment performance on the financial instrument
Determination of what constitutes a sustained pernod of repayment performance by the obligor depends on the
nature of the financial instrument But will typically be for a period of & months or mare,

The allowance for expected credit losses recognised against stage 1 fmancial assets is determined using 12 month
expected credit losses. Conversely, the allowance against stage 2 or stage 3 financial assels is based on lifetime
expected credit losses

Credt-impaired finandial instruments individually assessed for impairment are typically written-off when further
cash flows are deemed uncollectible and when all commercially reasonable means of recovering outstanding
principle and interest balances have been exhausted. Such a determination is based on factors such as the
ocourrence of significant changes in the obligor's financial position such that the obligor can no longer pay the
obligation, or that the proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay amounts due.

A cwrite off of a financial instrument such as a loan, recevable or debt secunty reduces the gross canying amaount
of the financial instrument. Write-oHs are initially recognised against any existing allowance for expected credit
lasses and can relate to a financial instrument in its entirety or to a portion of @ Recovenes are recognised as a
reduction of the provision for expected credit losses recognised through earnings during the reporting periad.

For stage 1 and stage 2 financial instruments, interest income 15 recognised during the reparting penicd at an
amount determined by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial instrument.
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For stage 3 financial assets, interest income is applied by applying the effective interest rate ("EIR”) to net carrying
amount of the financial asset namely the gross carrying amount less the allowance for expected credit losses.

Measirement of expacted cradit losses:

The measurement of expected credit losses through the general ECL impairment model is typically detesmined
within the Company using loss rate models or discounted cash flow medels depending on the relevant staging of
the financial mstrument. A loss rate mode| measures expected credit losses for an indwidual or portfolio of similar
financial instruments through development of loss rates calculated through an estimate of the probability of default
("FD7) of the cbligor and loss given default (LGD™) which is applied to the expected credit exposure of the obligar
at default "CEAD"). CEAD represents the expected amount of credt exposure (i.e amount owed to the Company)
at the peint that the financial instrument defaults.

PD inputs are determined by class of financial instrument and by internal Nomura credit rating applied to the
financial instrument. PO inputs used by the Company are sourced from industry data and validated based on
historical experence. PD mputs are prepared by refernng to SEF's historic rating migraton data and PD =
calculated over the next 12 months for stage 1 financial instruments and over the entire lifetime for stage 2 and 3
instrurments.

Forward-loolang infermation is incorporated into the PD inputs by forecasting economic scenanas and adjusting
the base case inputs for at least one optimistic and pessimistic scanario.

LGD inputs are determined by dass of financial instrument based on historical expenence of loss recovery rates
for similar financial instruments and other relevant industry data. LGD inputs are adjusted to reflect the impact of
collateral and integral credit enhancements.

For revalving and non-revolving loan commitments, the relevant absolute measure of CEAD represents an estimate
of the total amount of the facility which wall be drawn by the obligor by the time of default. This therefore includes
any portion of the facility currently funded and an additional adjustment based on a conversion factor to estimate
of further amounts which may be drawn.

Cash flows expected from collateral and other credit enhancements that are integral to contractual terms of the
financial instrument and not recognised separately by the Company are included in the measurement of expected
credd losses.

i Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a legally
enforceable nght to set off the financial asset and financial liability and the Company intends to settle the financial
asset and financial liabidity on a net basis.

gl Statement of cash flows

Starement of cash flows has been prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in
banks.

Fer the purpose of the cash flow statement, Met (gainyloss from financing activities are non-cash items which include
the effects of foresgn exchange results, amortisaton of debt msued and ather Borrowing usng the effective interest rate
method and FVO valuation,

The movernent in the Deferred tax assets and kabilities i included in the line Rem, Others while the movement in the
income tax receivabledpayable) is incleded in the ne tems Decreaselincrease) in other operating assets and
Increaseidecrease) in other operating habilities. Both these line fems ane presented under Met cash fom operatng
h} Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and pricr years are measured as the amount expecied to be recoverad
from or paid to the taxation authorites.

Deferred tax assets and liabiities are recognised for temporary difference between the carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position and the tax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The tax rates and tax ws used o compute the amount are these that are enacted or substantvely enacted as of the
repotting date,
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24  Operating segment

The Company has organised its business activibes based on ts products and senices. As the Company only engages
i ahe operabng segment of financng activity, the gross and netd assets and piofitfiess before tacation a8 plesented m
the face of the financial statements are related to the same segment. The majorty of the debt is issued to Japanese
investors, All loan payables, loan receivables and dervatives, except for denvatives embedded in some of the medium
term notes, ane transacted with the Momuwra Sroup.

2% Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The accounting policies and estmates are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the annual financial
statements of the previcus financial year, except for the following amendments to the standards that have becoms
effective and are relevant for the financial staterments of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025

Amendments to 1AS 1 Classification of Liabilites with Covenants as Current or Non-current

The International Accounting Standards Board (TIASET) ssued amendments 1o 1AS 1 Presentation to Financial
Statements in 2020 and 2022, with the objective of improving the information a company provides about liabilities
with covenants, n addibon to addressing stakeholders’ concems about how a company classihes habilities with
covenants as current or non-current. More specifically, the amendments specify that a) the conditions which exist
at the end of the reparting pencd are those which will be used to determine if a right to defer settlemeant of a liabdity
exists b) management expectations about events after the balance sheet date, for example on whether a covenant
will be breached, or whether early settlerment will take place, are not relevant ) the amendments clarify the
situations that are considered settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on oF after 1 January 2024, The amendments were endorsed by EU during the year ended 31 March
2024

The Company adopted these amendments as of 1 April 2024, The amendments had no material impact on the
Company's financial statements.

286  MNew and amended standards issued but not yet effective for the current financial year

The following amendments to the standards relevant to the Company were issued by A58 and endorsed by EU
as of 31 March 2025 and are effective for the annual reporting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 and
are not early adopted by the Company. Based on the assessment made, these amendments are not expected to
have a matenal impact an the Company's financial statements.

=  Amendments o IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangeabdity
{issued on 15 August 2023)

The follcwing standards, amendments to standards and improvements relevant to the Company were issued by
1458 but are not yet effective due to non-endarsement by EU as of 31 March 2025 The Company is assessing
their potential impact on the Company's financial staternents.

« IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (issued on 9 April 2024)

=  Amendments 1o the Classification and Measurerment of Finangial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS T) (issued on 30 May 2024)

= Annual improvements Volume 11 (issued on 18 July 2024)

3. Interest income and expense

(Milliens af JPY) For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest and similar income
Loans and advances to affiliates 52,748 45,602
Cash collateral 21 14
Cash and cash egquivalents 7 3
Others 1 -

528977 45,619
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[Milliens of JPY) Faor the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest and similar expense
Debt issued and other borrowing (308 (221)
Cash collateral receed (52) (31)
Berrowing from affillates (103 224) (70.834)
{103 5585) (71,085)

Main reasons of the decrease in Met interest income are the changes in market condtions of interest, such as interest
rate gap bebween bomowing rate and lending rate where currencies are different

4. Fee and commission expensa

[Millizns af JFY) For the vear ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Guarantes fee (432) (515)
[432) =15
5. Nettrading incomael{loss)
(Milians of JFY) For the year ended
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Met trading incomed{loss) on darivative financial
instruments 4,184 157,758
Met foreign exchange gainf{loss) 52,004 20,429
56,188 188,187

The Company manages the risks arising from fluctuations in foreign cumency exchanges and interest rates with the
use of derrvative instruments. The gains and losses on derivatives, which are held for risk management purposes 1o
offset these fluctuations are included in Met trading incomel{loss).

For hybnd instruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the gains and
losses on hedging denvatives are offset by the gains and lesses on embedded dervatives. For the instruments which
are not bfurcated, the gains and losses on hedging denvatives may cause fluctuation in the recognition of gains and
lzssas in Met trading incomedloss)

The vast majornity of the decrease of income in et rading incomeloss) for the yvear ended 31 March 2025 compared
o the year ended 31 March 2024 i5 resulting from the hedging dervatves associated to the financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss, This decrease is largely offset by a comesponding decrease of loss
in the MNet gainf{loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Risk management, fior infarmation regarding the nature and extent of the Company's dealing with financial instruments,
is disclosed in Note 23,

6. Met gaini{loss) on financial liabllities designated at fair value through prodit or loss

{Milians of JFY) For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Met gainf{loss) on financial habilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss (10,422 {163 S65)
{10,422} (163 564

Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair value and transaction costs associated with the
financial liakilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised under Met gaind(less) on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, except for the currency translation effect which is included
in Met trading moomed(loss).

This decrease of loss in Net gain/{loss) on financial liabikties designated at fair value through profit or loss is largely
offset by an decrease of income in Net trading incomed(loss) resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to
the financial kabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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7. Other operating gainiloss)

(Milons of JPY) For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Transfer pricing adjustment BETE 3743
Cther gains 132 109
8.208 3,852
Transfer pricing adjustment

According to the updated transher pricing documentation, the transfer pricing currently applied to the Company
does not substantially differ from the expired advance pricing agreement. In relation to the updated transfer pricing
documentation, JPY 8,676 million gain was incurred for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 : JPY 3,743
millin gain).

8, Salaries and social charges

(Milians of JPY) For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Salaries (251) (203)
Parsaon premium (27} (37
Social charges and welfare (31) (2T}
(309) (267)

9. MNumber of employees

The Company had 14 employees working in the Metherlands as of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 14). 8 of the 14
employees were working part ime as of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 7).

10. General and administrative expanseas

(Milions of JEY) For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Sub-contractor fees (132) (134)
Taxes other than income tax {1.527) (906)
Independent auditars expenses” (46) (51)
Other professional fees (35} (29)
Adrinistrative (74) (70)
Others )] (1)
{1817} {1,181
‘Independent auditors” expenses
(Pilians of JFY) —_—  Forthevearended
—SiMah2025__ _ 31 Narch 202 _
Audit (statutory) (17) (Z2)
Audit - other assurance Sences {20} (29}
(46} (31)
11. Taxation

The companents of the taxation expense fof the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are as follows:

[Millions of JFPY) For the year ended
3 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current fao;
Current income tax (285) {255)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior
Years - 1
Deferred tax
Relating to temporary differences [157) (=)
Taxation expense [442) {258)
17
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(Milhons of JPY)) Far the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit befane tax 1,747 566
At Dutch statutory income tax rate (451) (249)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - 1

Effect of permanent difference between taxable incoms

and accounting profit 9 (1)
Taxation expense (442) (258)

The statutary income tax rate for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 B 25.8%. The effectve tax rate
5 25.3% for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 26.8%). Based on the Country by Country Reporting
transitional safe harbor, the Company (after applying jurisdictional blending) should not be affected by BEPS Pillar 1l
and there should not be any potential impact on income taxes, which needs to be disclosed in the financial statements
of the Company.

The movements in the income tax receivable and deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

(Milons of JPY) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income tax (payable)/recevable

Beginning balance 114 T8
Payment 30 o7
Charged to income (284) (254)
Cther movements (48) (117
Ending balance 12 114
Deferred tax assets/{habilities)

Beginning balance (3,133 (4,361)
Deferred tax attributable to change in own credit risk (758) 1,233
Increaseddecrease) related to temporary diferences (158) (=]
Ending balance (4,050 (3,133)

Deferred tax assets and liabdibes are recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position and the tax base Deferred taxes occwr due to the differences in tax base
measurement and recognition timing of taxable income. The majority of the deferred tax assets and liabilities of
the Company pertain to the valuation of the dervative inancial instruments and financial liabilites designated at
fair value through profit or koss.

The components of the deferred tax recognized in the statement of financial position as of 31 March 2025 and 31
March 2024 are as follows:

{Millians of JPY) s of
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax attributable to own credit risk {4,578) (3,819)
Valuation of financial instruments 503 af7
Loss allowances for financial instruments. 25 108
{4,050 (3,133

12, Expected credit loss

The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk and loss allowances of financial
instruments subject to mpairment reguirements in IFRS 9 Financial Instruments as of the reporting date. Certain
off-balance shest instruments which expose the Company 1o a risk of loss due to default by the parties underlying
these contracts are also disclosed.

[Millicns of JPY) As of
31 March 2025
Maximum exposure o Loss allowance or
credit risk provision

Cash and cash equivalents 270 .
Caner debtors 892 855 a8
Cash collateral paid 102 884 -

296,309 28
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[Millions of JPY) As of
31 March 2024
Macirmurm exposure to Lees allowance o
credit nsk prowisian

Cash and cash equivalents 380 -
Other debtors 2275776 431
Cash collateral paid 88,206 .

2 3&4@62 431

The maximum credat risk exposure from the financial assets not subject to the impairment requirements in IFRS 9
includes the derivative financial assets as JPY 85,654 milion as af 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024 JPY 156 594
millian). Bifurcated emdedded derivatives are included in the derivatve financial assets. Agreements to exchange
collateral in cash have been concluded with counterparties to mitigate the credit risk ansing from the value of the
dernvative financial instruments.

Below table represaents the credit risk exposure of lnans by internal credit ratings and period end stage classification.
Internal rating categories are split as follows:

1) 7 grades in high credit qualty category, from AAA o A-

2) 3 grades in good credit quality category, frome BBE+ to BEB-

3) 3 grades in speculatve credit guality category; from BB+ to BB-

4) 3 grades in highly speculative credit quality category, fram B+ to B-
5) 1 grade in substantial credit sk quality category: CCC

B) 3 grades in default grade category;, fromCC 1o D

Internal credit ratings are assigned taking inte consideration the effects of economic fluctuations, to assess
creditworthiness of an obligor in one year or longer from the mid o long -term perspective. In particular, mternal
credt ratings are assigned based on the assessment of the mid to long-term capability and certainty of debt
repayment in addition to the fundamental condibons of a given ablgor or facility.

(Milons of JBY) Ag of
31 March 2025
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal
Internal Credit Rating
L 258, 852 - - 288,852
EEB+ / BEB- 603,063 . . 603,963
BE+/BB- - - - -
B+i/B- -
coc -
CC/iD . . . .
Giass carrying amaunt 892855 - - 892855
Loss allowance (58] - - (58]
Carrying amount B2 75T = - B92 757
(Milions of JPY) As of
31 March 2024
Stage 1 Stage 2 Sage 3 Total
Internal Credit Rabing
ARA LA 443,550 . . 443 550
EBE+ f BEE- 1,832,226 - - 1,832
ES+/BB- - - - -
B+i/B- - - -
coc
coip - - - -
Gross carmying amaount 2,275,776 - - 2275776
Loss allowance {431) - - {431)
Carrying amaunt 2,275,345 . . 2,275,345
19

107/202



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables explains the changes in loss allowance for the Company's financal instruments beteean the
beginning and the end of the perod. The Company did not have any financial assets or off-balance sheet financial
instrurments classified as Stage 2 or Stage 3 dunng the reporting penicd.

(Milians of JFY) 31 March 2025
Loans and
advanced to Loan

affiliates commitments

Stage 1 Stage 1 Total
Beginning balance o4 337 431
Transfers to stage 1 - - -
Transfers to stage 2 -
Translers to stage 3 - - -
Financial assets derecognised during pericd [9E) (338) (436)
Mew financial assets onginated or purchassed 24 T3 a7
Wirte offs - -
Changes in modelfisk parameters - -
Foreign exchange adjustments 4 2 L
Ending balance 2d 7d 28
Increasafidecrease) in boan less provisions during the year (333)
Forneign exchange
Total credit impairment lossf{gain) in the income statement
for the year T
(Milans of JEY) 31 March 2024

Loans and
advanced to Lean

affliates commitments

Stage 1 Stage 1 Tatal
Beginning balance 204 163 387
Transfers to stage 1 - . .
Transfers to stage 2
Transfers to stage 3 - - -
Financial assets derecognised during period {107) (163) {270)
Mew fnancial assets ongnated or purchased 62 337 399
Wirite offs - - -
Changes in modelfisk parameters (65) - (B5)
Foreign exchange adjustments - - -
Ending balance . 337 431
Increasef{decrease] in koan loss provisions during the year 54
Foneign exchange -
Tetal credit imgairnent lossligain) in the income staterment
tor the year 54
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13. Financial instruments classification summarny

{Milions of JFY)

Loans and advances to affiliates
Derivatve financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Caher assets

- Cash collateral paid
Total financial assets

Debt ssuved and other borfrowing
Finamcial [sabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Bomowing from affiliates
Derivative financial liabdites
Other habilities

Cash collateral received
Total financial liabilities

{Milons of JEY)

Loans and advances to affiliates
Derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cher assets

- Cash collateral pasd
Total financial assets

Debt issued and other borrowing
Financial labilites designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Borrowing from affiliates
Derivatve financial labdibes
Cther liabilities

- Cash collateral recenved
Total financial habalities

As of
31 March 2025
Mandatorily at Financial Financial liabilites
Financial fair value liabilites at designated at fair
assets at through profit amartised value through profit
amortised cost or loss cost of loss Total
851,086 . - - 801,086
- 85 G54 - - 85,684
570 - - - 570
102,884 . - 102,534
804 520 85,884 - - 1,080,204
S7.287 - 57287
- G70.241 G70.241
B 145,045 - 149,045
176,004 - - 176,004
6.030 - 5,020
176,004 212 362 670,241 1,058 607
As of
21 March 2024
Mandatonly at Financial Financial abilities
Financial fair value liabilties at  designated at fair
assets at thraugh prafit amartised  valug through prafit
amaortised cost ar loss cost or loss Tatal
2,271 400 - - 2,271,400
- 156,504 - 156,804
380 - - 380
88 205 - - 88 208
2 350 085 156 804 - 2516880
- 90,874 - 58,674
N - . 801,316 801,316
- - 1,336 500 - 1,236 500
. 151,360 . - 151,360
- 52522 - 82522
. 151,360 1,518,810 801,316 2,471,586
"
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14. Derivative financial instruments

(Milons of JPY) Az af
1 March 2025 31 March 2024
Derivative financial assets:
Forekgn exchange related dervatives 10,795 24818
Interest rate derivatives 5,832 15,087
Equity derivatives 39,584 42 546
Commodity dervatives 27 985 73,440
Credit dervatves 508 1,203
85 524 156 B84
Derivative financial labdibes:
Foreign exchange related derivatives 108,238 87,133
Interest rate derivatives 20,385 22, 457
Equity dervatives 27,738 14,111
Commodity denvatives 15,835 15,550
Credit derivatives 2,807 2,089
176,004 151,380

Above hgures in tables consest of current and non-current dervative financial assets and derwative financial
liabilities.

{Milians of JPY) As of
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Metional amounis:
Foreign exchange related derivatives 218,185 2161 979
Interest rate derpatives 302158 411,088
Equity derivatives 213,588 200,454
Commodity derivatives 101,200 103,500
Credit derivatives 104,135 132,743
240 350 3,009,764

All the above figures in tables include bifurcated embedded denvatives. Each derivative classification includes
derivatives referencing multiple risk compenents. For example, interest rate contracts include complex dervatives
referencing interest rate nisk as well as foreign exchange risk

All foreign exchange related derivatives and other dervatives mentioned above, except for bifurcated embedded
dervatives, are transacted with the Nomura Group.

The Company uses derivatives for hedging purposes in the management of its medium term notes portfolio. This
enables the Company to maigate the markel rsk and interest rate sk ansing from #s assets and llabiibes,

When calculating the fair value of derivatives, the credit and debit valuaton adjustments are taken into account.
The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minimal as the Company exchanges cash collateral

15. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance only comprises of cash in banks which is unrestricted for disposal

16, Other assets

(Milions of JEY) As of
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other current assets
Cash collateral paid 102 884 BB, 206
Crhers 10,579 7848
113 463 95 054

Under International Swaps and Dervatives Asscciation (ISDAT) Credit Support Annex signed with related parbes, the
Company posts cash collateral to derivative counferparbes related to derivative transactions. Others mainly include
accrued interest income
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17. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

Thie authansed shane capital consssts of 315,000 ordinary shares of Euro (ELR") 454 par value per share. The ssued
and paid-up share capital comprises of 113 000 shares with EUR 454 par value ped share,

Details of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows:

As of
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Issued and paid-up capdal at histancal cost (JPY Millions) 8,402 8,402
|ssued and paid-up shares (Thousands) 113 113
Par value per share (ELR) 454 454
Issued shares at par value [EUR Thousands) 51,302 51,302
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY) 161,450 163,065
lssued and paid-up capdal (JPY Millions) 8,284 8. 356

Difference between issued and paid-up capital and issued and paid-up capital at historical cost is presented under
reserves as follows:

(Milions of JFY) As of

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Issuwed and paid-up capital at historical cost 8402 8 402
Issued and paid-up capdal 8,284 8,366
Translation difference 118 36

As required by Aricle 2:373 paragraph 5 of the Dutch Civil Code the Issued and paid-up capital account is
measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the closing rate from ELR to JPY as of
the reporing date. The difference between the histoncal cost and the carying amount of the ssued and paid-up
capital as of the reporting date is recorded under Currency translation reserve,

18. Dividends paid

During the year erded 31 March 2025 cash dividend of JPY 16,850 millian (JPY 150,000 per share for the ssued
and paid-up shares of 113,000) was paid to the shareholder of the Company (ne dividend was paid for the year
ended 31 March 2024),

18, Debt issued and other borrowing

a.  Mon-current debt issued and ather borrowing

[Millicns of JPY) 31 March 2025 31 Manch 2024

Beginning balance 42979 120,940
Redemptions {27.,132) (14 542)
Reclassifications to current liakilties (12,611} (13.470)
Other movements (E)} 21

b Current debt issued and other borrowing

[Millicns of JPY) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Beginning balance 5,200 1,218
Redemptons (15.454) (7,789
Reclassifications from non-current liabilities 12611 13,470
Other movements - -
Ending balance 4,057 5,900

In the above tables, other movemants ane mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange results.

23
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20. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

a,  Non-current financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(Millions of JPY) 3 March 2025 31 March 2024

Beginning balance 522 730 5582 001
Issues 123,840 178,854
Redemptions (595,061) (145 664)
Reclassifications to current liabilties (79,275) (25 5E58)
Foreign exchange results (10,958) 11,470
Unrealised revaluations i20,594) 17,804
Changes in own credit sk (3,078) 4142
Other movemants 40 {294)
Ending balance 437,746 522,730

b.  Current financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

[Millicons of JFY) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Beginning balance 278,586 361,940
|ssues 46186 54 429
Redemptions (124.812) (3230,929)
Reclassifications. from non-current liabilities 79,275 96,658
Foreign exchange results (B18) 6,401
Unrealised revaluations (46,387) 79,250
Changes in own credit risk 176 654
Other movements 89 173
Ending balance 232,485 278,588

The impact of fair value changes attributabde to the Company's own credit risk included in ather comprehensive
incomel(loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is an unrealised gain of JPY 2,941
millicn for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: JPY 4,778 million loss), The cumulative valuation
adjustments resulting from own credit is an unrealised gain of JPY 17,743 million as of 31 March 2025 (31 March
2024: JPY 14,802 millon gain). The Company calculates the own credit spreads refernng bo secondary market
prices.

Contractual due amounts of the notes which are issued by the Company may link to various indices. For risk
management purposes, the Company uses dervative transactions to hedge the risk arising from the fluctuations
of indices. Contractual obligations are included in the fair value measurement of financial instruments by using
parameters and models as of the reporting date as disclosed in Mote 24, Fair value, Cran credit adjustment amounts
are disclosed separately in the above.

The notes with principal protected nature have a carrying amount of JPY 253 992 million and the principal obligation

of JPY 208,652 million as of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: carrying amount JPY 207 389 million, principal
ohligaton JPY 350,077 milan).

21. Other liabilities

(Millions of JPY) As of
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other current liabilties
Cash collateral received 6,030 82,522
Oithers 1,695 10,338
7725 g2 850

Under IS0 Credit Support Annex signed with related parties, the Company receives Cash collateral from dervative
counterpartes related to demvative transactons. Cthers mainly include accrued interest expense and other accrued
EXPENSes.

22. Commitments and contingent liabilities
The Company has JPY 947 352 million unsetted loan commitments to the Mamura Group comganies as of 31 March

2025 (31 March 2024: JPY 2,043 343 millicn). Unsettied lcan commitments are held off balance sheet, untl the point
at which they become drawn.
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23. Risk management

The Company follows the Nomura Group nsk management framework. The Marmura Group msk management
framewark i as follews:

OVERVIEW OF GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

The business actribies of the Nomura Group s exposed to vanous risks, moluding market nsk, credt risk, operabonal
risk, and other risks arising from external factors. Below is an outline of the Nomura Group nisk management framework.

Group Risk C -

The Momura Group recognizes that unexpected losses from business operations may ercde the capital of the Momura
Group due to vanous nisks, including market risk. credit risk, operabonal risk, and model risk. Addibonally, bguidity risk
may arise if a decling in the Group's creditworthiness or adverse market conditions make it déficult to secure necessary
funding. Furthermore, strategic nsk could affect current and fulure eamings, capdal, iquidity, enterprse value, and the
reputation of the Momura Group due to poor management decisions, hasty or mistaken business advancements, or
INACHoN i response 1o changes within the industry or extemnal emvironmeant.

Group Risk Management Policy

The Nomura Group's fundamental principle is that all employess should regard themsebves as prncipals of nsk
management and actively engage in the managament of risks at all arganizabional levels. The Momura Group's aim is
to promote a proactive risk management culture throughout the organization and to limit risks within its defined risk
appetite.

Group Risk Management Procedures

* The Momura Group calculates, aggregates, reports, and monitors management information related to risk to support
sound decision making.

* The Risk Management Division and Finance Division are responsible for regulary compiling the status of positions in
ling with risk appette and ensuring appropnate data management

* Managemeant information sgans vanous nsk categonies and is produced using multiple risk management technigques,
+ The nsk management framework consists of nsk appetite, govemance and oversight, management of financial
resources, management of risk categories, and processes o measure and control risks.,

I i n I

The Momura Group has established a framework designed to manage its risk aimed at maintaining financial soundness
and enhancing enterprise value,

Three Line of Defense Frameveor

* First Line of Defense: ANl executives and employees in the front office are pamarily responsible for risk management
= Second Line of Defense: The risk management department suppons and monitons first ing activites and repons o
SEMIor management.

* Third Line of Defense: The independent intemal audit department examines and evaluates risk management activibes
and repans findings o the Audit Commities.

Seffing Risk Appet

Based on its management strategy, the Momura Group determines the types and levels of nsk it s willing 1o assume
and reviews thesse reqularly. Risk Appetite i jeintly submitted by the Chief Rk Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
({the "CFO") to the Executve Management Board (the "EMB”) for approval. 1t will then be further revieswed at the Board
Risk Committee through the authority to consent to the relevant proposal raised by the executive side.

Grow Limd Framewors

The establishment of robust it monitonng and management is central to the appropriate mondonng and management
of risk. The limit management frameworks incorporate escalation palicies to faciitate approval of limits at appropriate
levels of seniorty. The Risk Management Division and the Finance Division are responsible for day-to-day operatons
of these limit frameworks including approval, monitoring, and reporting as required. Business units are responsible for
corrglying with the agreed lirmits, Linets apply across a range of quantitative measures of risk and across market nisk,
crendit risk, model risk, etc.
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Group Committes Governance

The Momura Growp has an EMBE as a body to deliberate on or determine managemeant strategy, the allocation of the
management rescuices and impantant managernent matters of the Nomura Group. The Group Risk Management
Committee (the "GRMC") operates, upon delegabon from the EMB, for the purpose of deliberating on or detemmining
impartant matters conceming enterprise risk management of the Momura Group and thereby assuring the sound and
effectve management of the Nomura Group's businesses.

a Risk C iee and Definit

The Nomum Group categonzes reks as follows and has established departrments to manage each type:
* Financial Risk: Market rsk, credit risk, model nsk

* Non-Financial Riskc Operational risk, reputational risk

« Other Risks: ESG (Environmental, Social, Governance), strategic risk, ete

» Liquidity Risk: Liquidity risk

THE COMPAMY'S RISK MAMNAGEMENT

The Company's risk management activities involve both the assessment and transfer of certain nsks which the
Company must manage. The mast important types of risk are market risk, credit risk, liguidity risk and operational sk
Market risk includes currency risk, price risk, and interest rate risk.

The Company's pnmary cbjective s 1o act as a financing vehicle for the Nomura Group. To this end, the Company
issues debt with retums linked to a vanety of different indices including but not limited o equites, interest rate, foreign
exchange, credit and commodities. The Company actively manages the resultant risk using derivative financial
instruments with the intention of elimenating sagnibeant market nek argang from such instfuments. The Company
transacts these dernivative instruments solely wath other entities within the Momura Group.

The Company’s financial instruments include loan advances, cash collateral deposited to or recesved from cther entities
within the Nomura Group, debt ssued and other borowing, financial instruments dessgnated at fair valee through profit
or loss and derivatives and bormowing from affiliates.

The Company seeks to minimise the market risks by entering into dervative agreements to economically hedge the
exposures in its loans and medium term notes. The maturity structure of the dervatives commesponds with the maturity
of the medium term notes being hedged.

Interest Rate and Equity Prce Risk

It is the policy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity pnoe exposures via the use of interest rate derivatives,
CIOSS curency dervatives of equily Swaps.

The Company raises funding with short-term or leng-term borrowings through the issuance of medium term notes. The
Company funds the desired cumencies at both foced and fioating rates of interest and then uses both interest rate and
cumency derivatives to generate the desired interest rate hedge profile. This will invalve matching the coupon dates on
both the assets and labilites where relevant

Applying the above hedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Company does not have a significant interest rate
expasure as of 31 Mareh 2025 and 31 March 2024

Currency Exposure

Currency exposunes ane comprsed of the manetary assets and monetary labiltes of the Company that are not
dencrminated i the functional currency of the Company. All matenal net currency exposure ansing from actvites of the
Company is actively hedged using foreign exchange related derivatives andlor currency dervatives. It is the policy of
the Company nat 1o trade currency exposure; therefore, all currency dervative transactions are entered into with the
intenticn of hedging enly.

Applying the above hedging policy on currency exposure, the Company does not have a significant currency exposure
a5 of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Credit Quality of E ial Asset
The Company 5 a fully owned subsidian of NHI, who i3 the guarantar of the notes issued by the Company, together

with anather related party. Therefore the Company considered the credit rating of the Momura Group as the credit rating
of MHI from S&F Global Rabngs remained the same as of 31 March 2025, which is BBE+.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s loans and derivative financaal instruments are traded exclusively with the Momura Group. The external
credit rating of NHI 5 considered to exhibit adequate protection parameters, as defined by S&P Global Ratings.
Conssquently, the Company deems that credit sk & minimised.

san Techni

As menboned previously, the Company enters into ISDA master agreements or equivalent agreements (called
Master Netting Agreements) to mitigate its exposure to credit sk, Master Netbng Agreements allow netting of
receiables and payables and reduce losses potentially incurred as a result of a counterparty default. Further
reduction in credit risk is achieved through entering into collateral agreements that allew the Company o obtain
collateral from counterpartes. The impact of offsetting financial assets and financial labilties which are subject to
these agreements i not reflected in the statement of financial pesiion.

I Fi ial
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets.

The Company recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date as described in Note 2.3.e, All
loans are transacted with the Nomura Group.

Operatonal Risk

The Company does not have a significant operational risk exposure as of 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,
The Momura Group's definiion of Operational Risk is as follows.

Operatanal ik s defingd as the nek of financial loss of non-financial mpacts, such as viclations of laws and
regulatons or deterioration of the reputation of the Nomura Group, arising from inadeguate or failed mternal
processes, people, systems, or from external events. This risk includes compliance, legal, IT and information
security, cyber, fraud, third-party risks, and other non-financial risks. Although this definition excludes strategic risk
{the rsk of loss ansing from poar strategic management decsions) and reputabional sk, cperational rsks can stil
significantly affect the Group's reputation, creating a close relationship bebeeen cperational and reputational risk.
The Momura Group has established a management framework for identifying, assessing, managing, monitoring,

and reporting operatonal risk. This framework is supervised by the GRMC wiath delegated authority from the EMB.
The Operational Risk Management ("ORM”) framework consists of the following components:

+  Foundation of the Risk Management Framework:

- Policy Framework: Clearly establishes the fundamental principles for managing ocperational nsk and
details how adherence to these standards will be monitored.

- Traning and Awareness. [nitatives aimed at improving understanding of operational risk management
throuwghout the arganization.

+ Key Risk Management Activities:

= Event Reporting: A process used to identify and repornt events that lead to, or could potentially lead to,
losses of gans ansing from inadequate o failed internal processes, peaple, systems, or external events.

- Risk and Control Self-Assessment ("RCSA"): This process involves identifying the inherent operational
risks the business faces, evaluating the key controls established to miligate those risks, and formulating
addibonal measures as necessary. The ORM team is responsible for developing the RCSA process and
supporting its implementation wathin business units.

- Key Rk Indcators @ Metrice used to manilor expasure o operational risk and trigger approphiate
responses if predefined thresholds are breached.

- Scenano Analysis: A process used to assess and quantify potential high-impact, low-probability
operational risk events and kientdy actions necessary o enhance the contred emvironment

= Quiputs from the Risk Management Activities

- Analysis and Reporting: A critical aspect of the ORM team's role is to analyze and report on operational
risk information provided by business units, and waork with them to develop action plans for risk mitigation

- Qperational Risk Capital Calculation: The Momura Group calculates the required cperational risk capital
in alignment with Basel regulations and local regulatory requirements.

27
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Liquidity R

The Company i fully mtegrated into the Nomura Group's Liquiddty Risk Management frameworks gren its primary
rale as the funding vehiche af the Nomura Graup.

The maturity profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managed by Global
Treasury of the Momura Group to aveid any concentration of funding by maturity and source. The distribution of
sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order to ensure acoess to funds and to avoid
a concentration of funding at any cne time or from any one source.

The Momura Group's defintian of Liquidity Risk s as follows.

The Nomura Group define liquidity risk as the risk of loss arising from difficulty in securing the necessary funding
or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to detericration of the Memura Group's
crediéworthiness or detenoration in market conditions. Thes risk could anse from Momura-specific or market-wide
evants such as inabilty to access the secured or unsacured debt markets, a detenoration in our credit ratings, a
failure to manage unplanned changes in funding requirements, a failure to kquidate assets guickly and with minimal
loss in value, or changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different
group entities. Qur global liquiddy risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite formulated by the EMB.
The Momura Group's liquidsty risk management, under market-wide stress and in addiion, under Momura-specific
siress, seeks to ensure enough continuous liguidity to meet all funding requirements and unsecured debt
obligatons across one year and 30-day penods, respectively, without raising funds through unsecured funding or
through the liquidation of assets. The Nomura Group is required to meet regulatory notice on the hquidity coverage
ratic and the net stable funding ratio issued by the Financial Services Agency of Japan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Fair value

Fair value of financial assets and financial llabilities

Comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments:

The carrying amounts of current financial assets and current financial liabilibes measured at amortised cost
including Borrowang from affiliates fairly approximate their fair values, since they are short-term in nature. Below

tables include comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of non-current loans and advances to affiliates
and non-current debt issued and other barmowing,

{Millions of JFY) As of
3 March 2025
Carrying amaunt Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Loans and advances to affiliates - - -
Debt ssued and other borrowing 53,230 49,402 -
(Millians of JFY) A ot
31 March 2024
Carrying amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Loans and advances to affiliates 55,186 58,077 -
Debt msued and other borrowing 92,979 £9.310 -

For financial assets carried at amortised cost which have a maturity of more than one year from the reporting date,
fair value is determined based on discounted cash flows using the prevailing rates from the active markets. Credit
figk and senionty of the relevant laans are aken inle consikderation in determining the fair value of the loan,

Fer financial Eabilities carfed at amortised cost having a maturty of more than one year from the reporting date,
fair value is determined based on price quotations at the reperting date. These quotations are based on technigues
for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the fair value are observable either directly or ndirectly, as well
as technigues which use inputs not based on observable market data.

Fair Value Hierarchy

All financial instruments measured at fair value, including those measured at fair value using the FVO, have been
categorized into a three-level hierarchy (“fair value hierarchy”) based on the transparency of valuaton mputs used
by the Momura Group to estimate fair value, A financial instrument is classified in the fair value hierarchy based an
the boweest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurament of the fimancial instrument. The three levels
of the fair valwe hierarchy are defined as follows, with: Level 1 representing the most transparent inputs and Lewvel
3 representing the least transparent inputs:

Level 1: Observable valuation inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadpested) for identical financial instruments
traded in active markets at the measurement date,

Level 2: Valuation inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly
observable for the financial instrument.

Level 3; Unobzervable valuation inputs which reflect the Nomura Group's assumptions and specific data,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have cccurned between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categonisation at the
beginning of each reporting period.

The availability of valuation inputs obsarvable in the market varies by product and can be affected by a vanety of
factors. Significant factors include, but are not restricted to the prevalence of similar products in the market,
especially for customized products, how established the product is in the market, for example, whether it is a new
product or is relatively mature, and the reliability of informabion provided in the market which would depend, for
example, on the frequency and volume of current data. A period of significant change in the market may reduce
the availability of observable data. Under such circumstances, financial instruments may be reclassified into a lower
level in the fair value hierarchy,

33
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant judgments used in determining the classification of financial instruments include the nature of the market
in which the preduct would be traded, the underlying risks, the type and Bquidity of market data inputs and the
nature of obsenved transactions for simlar instruments.

Where valuation models include the use of valuation inputs which are less observable or uncbservable in the
market, significant management judgment is used in establishing fair value. The valuations for Level 2 financial
instruments, therefore, involse a greater degree of judgment than those valuations for Level 1 o Level 2 financal
instruments.

The followding tables presents information about the Company’s financial assets and financial iabiities measured at

fair valwe within the fair value hierarchy on a recurnng basis, based on the transparency of inputs into the valuation
techniques used by the Company to determine such fair values.

122/202



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

oOoOooodn

SE
D 59598 9.8'756 0/ 551 Zav'ERS - SPC OFE
LR 051 FIF 059 9LE L0 ToaCrL BLEITS . L 0Le
£l gL 690°T Lk 989 . L08'E
- 05551 0555k - SEE'SL - SEE'SL
PEsL LPETL L BEF'S ore'ze . 8L
BI0'EL 20F'E LBYIE 1ZZ'8 FOL'ZL - CREDE
EEY 00496 EEL'LG La L1601 - BET'BO0L
BLZ'sl LrLaglL 0ae" LSl WB'EL £0L'ZOL FO0'9LL
£ [@na T [aAaT L [@ra unowy Guifiesy € [@ra] T [aaaT L @A) UnCy BUAIED
FTOT M2EW LE _ STOT WMEW LT
o5y
gLz EL QLDENL B2 851 £G1G LEB'B. - FE0'ce
FAT LG8 o0z’ vElL FLE - 805
- arres OFr'es - SBE' LT . G86' LT
ZEEL POl L oFS'TY BES ST0'EE - POS'BE
£L8'0L FIZF LA0'SE 2T G092 . TER'D
L50 LO8'ET 2Le've 28l PBE'G S8L°0L
BLEEL aLaErL PEEEGL £54'G LEB'BL peg'se
[ A 7 [eAsT [T NG GUIALED £ [aan 7 [aha [WETEG] NSy Bulbien
FTOT MREW LE _ STOT WMEW LE
o5y

SIN3WALYLS TYIONYNI4 3HL O1 S310N
‘AN FINYNIA 3dOUNT YHNWON

550| 40 Jyoud yBnowyy anjeas J1ey
18 paleubisan Sanijige) [BaueUi
SRAEAIED P
saselap fpowwod
sangearap Apnbg
SaAjEALAD S YEalaQU|
SaneAlap
pajeja abueyaxe ubiauioyg
SRR [RI2UEUL SAQEAI]
anjea ey
JE POUNSED SHTIGRI [BIaURLI

A o suoliy)

SINIENIIP UPHID
SSANBALSD APPOWLLIGT
sanessap Aynbg
SDANEALIP BRI JSAIW)
Saspeslap
paeja abueyaxs ublaiog
SHASSE [BIOUELY SAQEALST
anjea ey
1B PRUNSES SIaS5E |EIoUeLI4

{ A jo Suii)

123/202



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of recurring fair value measuraments categorisad within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Thie followang tables show a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instrurments categonsed within

Livial 3 between the begnning balances and the ending balances as of the regarting pencds.

(Milions of JPY) 31 March 2025
Financial liakdilities
Derivative financial  Derivative financial designated at fair value
assels labilities through profit or less
Beginning balance 13,218 15,219 150,652
Total gains/(lesses) in the income (3786 (E46) (2.848)
statement and statement of
comprehensive meome
Mew Issues - - 131,050
Settlements 6,351) 1,536 (G4, 280)
Translers m 55 763 4738
Transfers out (783) {2871) (56 692)
Ending bakance 5,753 13,51 142 BE2
Total unrealised gains/(losses)
far the period included in the
imcorme statement for instrurments
held at the end of the reporting
period 304 (5,563) 5,365
{Milions of JFY} 31 March 2024
Financial liabilities
Derivatve financial  Derivative financial designated at fair value
assels labilites through profit or loss
Beginning balance 11,848 20,427 208,431
Total gains/{losses) in the income 10,628 (2,700 12,889
statement and statement of
comprehensive income
Mew Issues . . 155,185
Settlements {7.650) (B3g) (143,443)
Transfers n 22 4103 56,927
Transfers out (1,830) {5.872) {143,087)
Ending balance 13,218 15,219 150,852
Tetal unrealised gains/(losses)
for the pericd included in the
incame statement for iInstruments
held at the end of the reporting
penod 8 754 (7248} [2.705)

*Forf assels, posilive balances represent gains, negalive balances represent losses. For Babilities, posilive balances represent
Iosses, negalive balances represent gains.

Total gains and losses on financal dervatives included in the above table are included under Met trading
incomel(less) in the income statement. Total gains and losses on financial liabilibes designated at fair value through
prafit or loss included in the above table are included under Net gain/{loss) on financial liabilittes designated at fair
value through profit or loss in the income statement

Dwaring the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, there were no financial assets and financial liabilties
recognised at fair value under Level 1. Thus, no transfers eccummed between Level 1 and Level 2,

The Company assumes that all transfers of financial instruments from one level to another level within the fair value
hierarchy occur at the beginning of each quarter within the relevant period in which the transfer takes place.
Amounts reported above therefore represent the fair value of the financial instruments at the beginning of each
guarter within the relevant period when the transfer was made

124/202

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Valuation techniques by major class of financial instrument
Derivatives

The Company has only OTC dervatives, including bifurcated embedded dervatives, which are valued using
internal models using market transactions and other market evidence whenever possible, including market-based
inputs fo models, model calbration to market cleanng transachons, broker or dealer quotabons, or altemative
pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Valuation techniques include simple discounted
expected cash flow techniques, Black-5Scholes and Monte Carlo simulations. OTC derivatives, including bifurcated
embedded dervatives, are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy when all of the significant inputs can
be corroborated to market evidence.

Derivatives that are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs such as correlation, long-dated
volatilty, or ether unobservable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives classified as Level 3
by the Company include exolic interest rate derivatives, exotic foreign exchange derivabives, exolic equity
dervatives, exotic derivatives including a combination of interest rate, foresgn exchange and equity nsks and certain
other transactions including long-dated or exotic credit derivatives.

‘aluation techniques may rely on parameters which are not observable in the market due to an absence of
equivalent, current, market transactions of chsersable market data. These valuaton techniques are based on
assumptions. As a result, the fair value calculated using these valuation technigues will change f the undarlying
assumpbons change.

For the year ended 31 March 2025, a total of JPY 55 million of financial assets (31 March 2024: JPY 222 million)
and a total of JBY TE3 million of financial kabilities (31 March 2024: JPY 4,103 million) were transferred into Level
3 On the financial as2e1s side the transferred amount comprised primarly JPY 25 millian of equity denvatves (31
March 2024: comprised primanly JPY 161 million of equity derivatives) which were transferred into Level 3 because
certain volatilities and correlations became unobservable or the significance of unobservable parameters increased.
Cn the financial liabilktes side the ransferred amounts comprised primarily JPY 763 milion of equity derivatives
{31 March 2024: comprsed primarily JPY 3,231 millon of equity denvatives) which were transferred into Level 3
because certain volatilities and correlations became unobservable or the significance of unobsarvable parameters
increased,

For the year ended 31 March 2025, a total of JPY 783 million of financial assets (31 March 2024: JPY 1,830 millson)
and a total of JPY 2,971 million of financial liabilities (31 March 2024; JFY 5,972 million) were transfamed out of
Level 3. On the financial assets side the fransferred amount comprised primarnly JBEY T80 million of equity
dervatives (31 March 2024: comprised primarily JPY 1,100 million of equity derivatives ) which were transferred
out of Level 3 because cenain volatiihes became cbservable or the signficance of uncbservable parameters
decreased, On the financial liabilities side the transferred amounts comprised primarily JPY 2,984 million of equity
dervatives (31 March 2024 comprised primanly of JPY 5,107 milkon of equity dervatives) which were transherred
out of Level 3 because ceain volatilties and correlations became obsenable or the significance of unobsanvable
parameters decreased.

The Company issues medium-term nobes which contains embedded features that alter the retum to the investor from
simply receiving a ficed or fioating rate of interest to a retum that depends upon some cther variables, such as an equity
of equity index, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third party or 3 mone complex ntenest rate
{ie., an embedded derivative).

The fair value of such medium term notes is determined using a quoted market price in an actve market for the identcal
labilty if available, and whene not available, using a macture of valuation technsgues that use the quoted price of the
identcal kability when traded a¢ an assel, quoted prices for similar kabilibes, simlar habilties when traded as an assel,
or an internal model which combines discounted cash flow ("DCFT) valuation techniques and option pricing models,
depending on the nature of the embedded features within the medium term note. The significant valuation inputs used
to estimate the fair value of the debt instrument compenent include yield curves, prepayment rates, default of
probabilities and loss Severibes

Valuation processes

The Company is fully integrated into the Momura Group's governance framework which mandates determination
orvalidation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent of the businesses assuming
the rsk of the financial instrument in order to ensure the appropriateness of any fair value measurement of a
financial instrument used within these financial statements including those classified as Level 3 wathin the fair value
hietarchy.

The funchions within the Nomura Group for either defining, implermenting ar maintaining valuation policies and
pracedures ane as follows:
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s The Valuation Model Validation Group within Momura's Risk Management Departmaent reviews prcing models
and assessas model appropnateness and consistency independently of the front office. The model reviews
consider a number of factors about 3 models suitability for valuation and sensitivity of a particular product.
Valuation models are calibrated to the market on a periodic basis by comparison to observable market pricing,
comparnson with altemative models and analyses of risk profiles.

. The Accounting Palicy Group within Momura's Finance Department defines the Group's accounting policies
and procedures, including those associated with determination of fair value, This group reports to the Glabal
Head of Accounting Policy and ulimately to the CFO of the Momura Group.

Quantitative information regarding significant unobservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information abeut the significant uncbservable inputs and assumptions used for
financial instruments classified as Level 3. These financial instruments alse typically include chservable valuation
inputs (i.e. Level 2 valuabon inputs) which are not included in the table.

The following table shows valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurements of Level 3 financial
assets and financial liabilities:

(Milons of JPY) 31 March 2025
Fair value
Valuation Significant uncbservable Range of valuation
Assels Liabilties  techniguels) inputs inputs’
Foreign exchange 787 61 DCFICpton FX Volatiities (%) 11,50-12,07%
related dervatives hodel
Interest rate 4,223 8221 DCF/iQption Interest rates 2.04-4 16%
derivatives Model FX Volatilities (%) 9.82-18 TE%
IR Volatilities(bg) 44170247 bp
Correlations 0.35-0.98
(=1.0ta1.0)
Equity dervatives 539 5,498 DCFOption Dividend yiebd 0.00-4. 45%
Model EQ Volatilites(%) 16.83-51 . 53%
Corelaticns 0,72-0.62
(-1.01.0)
Credit derivatives 194 121 DCF Credit Spreads(%) 0.24-1.42%
Recovery Rate(%) 35.35%
Financial liabilities. 142882 DCFMOption  Interest Rate Derivatives
designated at fair Model Interest rates 2.04-3.56%
value through FX Volatibtes(%) 9.82187TM%
profit or loss IR Volatilties(bp) 44.17-92.47 bp
Correlations (1.0 tz 1.0) 0.35.0,98
BEquity Derivatives
Dividend yield[%) 0.00-4.45%
EQ Volatilities(%) 16.83-51.53%
Cerrelabons (1.0 te1.0) 072082
Credit Derivatives
Cradit Spreads (%) 0.24-1 42%
Recovery Rates(%) 353-35%
Total 5753 156 763
38
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(Milions of JPY) 31 March 2024
Fair value
Valuation Significant unobservable Range of valuation
Assels Liabilities technique(s) inputs inputs’
Foreign exchange 51 433  DCFiOption FX Volatilities(%) 11.83-12 56%
related dervatives Model
Interest rate 10,873 13,029  DCFiOption Interest rates 3.35-388%
derivatives Model FX Volatilities(%) 10.32-13.56%
IR Volatilities{bp) 37.85-00.12bp
Correlations 012098
-1.0ta 1.0}
Equity derivatives 1,382 1564  DCFIOption Dividend yield 0.00-2.14%
Madel EQ Volatilities(%) 16.98-53.80%
Correlations -0.63-0.91
=10t 1.00
Credit dervatives 3z 193 DCF Credit Spreads(%) 0.26 -1.40%
Recovery Rabe(%) 35-35%
Financial lsabilites 150,892  DCFMOption  Interest Rate Dervatives
designated at fair Model Interest rates 3.36-3.36%
value through FX Volatilities(%) 10,32.13.25%
prafit or loss IR Wolatilities{bp) 37.85.90.12bp
Corralabans (-1.0 e 1.0) 0122098
Equity Dervatives
Dividend yield(%) 0.00-2.14%
ECQ Volatilities(%) 16.80 -53.80%
Correlatons (-1.0 to 1.0) -0.63-0.91
Credit Denvatives
Credit Spreads (%) 0,26 -1,40%
Recovery Rates(%) 35-35%
Total 13,218 166,111

* Range information is provided in percentages, coeflicients and represents the highest and lowest level significant unobserable
valuation input used tovalue that type of financial instrument. A wide dispersion in the range does nol necessarily refllect increased
uncertainty or subjectivity in the valuation input and is typically jus! a consequence of the different characteristics of the Snancial
imsbnu ments tharmsalves,

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a varety of factors, including, but
not limited to general market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and comelation risk, current values
may continue to decrease i condibons deteriorate further. Conversely, should conditions improve, an increase in
the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected. However, management does not anticipate a significant impact
in the net position of Level 3 financial instruments.

A the Company enters into dervative transactions to hedge its exposunes in medium term notes, the increase or
decrease in the value of the Level 3 portfolio will not significantly impact its profits and losses. Hedging derivative
instruments offset the positions arising from the dervatives which are embedded in the debt instruments and limit
the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobsersable inputs related to these financial instruments,

For each class of financial instrument described in the above tables, changes in each of the significant
unchservable inputs and assumptions used by the Company will impact the fair value measurement of the financial
instrument. The sensitivity of these Level 3 fair value measurements to changes in unobservable inputs and
interfelatonships babesen those inputs are described balow

Derivatives - Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a derivative, significant increases (decreases) in
the underlying of the dervative, such as interest rates or credit spreads in isolation or significant decreases
(increases) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value measurement Where the
Company is short the underlying risk of a derivative, the impact of these changes would have a converse effect on
the fair value measurements reported by the Company.

39

127/202



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where the Company is long optionality, recovery rates or comelation, significant increases (decreases) in volatilities,
recovery rates or cormelation will generally result in a significantly higher {lower) fair value measurement Where
the Company s short opticnality, recovery rates of corelation, the impact of these changes would have a converse
effect on the fair value measuremants.

Financial liabilites designated at fair value through profit or loss - When financial liabilties designated at fair value
through profit or loss contain embedded features, embedded features alter the return to the investor from simply
recening a fived or floating rate of interest to a return that depends upon some ather vanables, such as an equity
or equity index, commaodity pnce, foreign exchange rate, credit rating of a third party or a more complex interest
rate.

Given that the financial derivatives are held for nsk management purposes fo offset movemnent from such financial
liabiliters designated at fair value through profit or loss, sensitivity of the fair value of the financial liabilites designated
at fair value through profit or loss to changes in unobservable inputs are expected to be in the oppaosite direction of
those of the dervatives.

There is no predictable interrelationship between significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 financial instruments.

Given the Company is exposed to imited market risk, the sensitivity of the profit or loss and equity to unobservable
inputs is negligicle. Regarding the statement of financial position, when reascnably possible altemative
unohservable inputs are used, the impact on fair value of Level 3 instruments is nat significant compared to the
tetal assets of the entity.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses generated from the use of valuation technigues with signdicant unobservable parameters are defermed
ower the e of the contract untl parameters become obsarvable or when the instrument is derecognised. Changes in
fair value after incepbon are recognesed in the income statement The total fair value attributable to these financial
instruments that is yet to be recognised in the income statement as of the reporting date is J&Y 152 milkon gain (31
March 2024: JPY 152 millian gain). The foliowang table shows a reconciliation of movements in the day 1 gains and
lzsses bebeeen the beginning balances and the ending balances.

{Millions of JBY) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Beginning balance gain 152 172

Mew transactions . .

Amounts recognised in profit or loss duning the year - [20)

Ending bakance gain 152 152
40
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25. Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a summary of financial assets and financial lmbilities subgect to the Master Nething
Agreements and similar agreaments,

(Millians of JPY) 31 March 2025
Related amounts not set off in
the staternent of financial

pasition
Gross
amaunts  Amaunts
Gross amounts of offset in presented
recognised the in the
financial balance balance Financial Cash Met
assets/liabilties'! sheat sheet instrurnents':! collateral*! Amount
Dedvative
financial assets 83814 - 383814 (69,330) (6,020 5,454
Loans and
advances o
affiliates 273,130 . 273130 {284) . 272 846
Total fmancial
assets 356 944 - 356,944 (E9.614) (5,030) 281,300
Derivative
financial 173,804 . 173,604 {BE,614) (102, 884) 1,106
labilities
Total financial
liabilities 173,604 - 173,604 {B9,614) [102.854) 1,106
(Millions of JPY) 31 March 2024
Related armounts not set off m
the staternent of financial
pasition
Gross
amaunts  Amaunts
Gross amounts of  offsetin - presented
recognised the in the
financial balance balance Financial Cash Met
assets/liabilties' sheet sheet instruments'”! collateral ! Amaunt
Derivative
financial assets 155,764 - 155,764 (54,151) (82,118) 19,495
Loans and
advances to
affiliates 304 975 . 354 975 (285) . 384 650
Total fimancial
255815 S50, 739 - 550,739 (54 4480 (B2 118) 414,175
Dernivative
financial 142,395 - 142,395 (54, 448) (&7 548
liabilities
Total fmancial
liabilities 142 305 - 142 385 (54, 448) (87 545)

1y The bifurcated embedded derivatives are excluded as they are nol in scope of master netting and similar agreements:

2) Those represent amounts which are not permitied to be offset on the face of the balance sheel but which provide the
Company with the right of offsel in the event of countenparty defaull, insolvency or bankruplcy,

3y The cash collateral received against the positive mark to market values of derivalives and the cash collateral pledged
towards the negative mark to market values of dervalives are reported under Other liabilities and Ciher assets respectively,

The Company entered inte ISDA Master Agresments with all dervatve counterparses which grant the Company
the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankruptcy. The Company also entered into
On Balance Sheet and Off Balance Sheet Master Metting Agreements with one of the counterparties which grant
the Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insolvency or bankruptcy. These arrangements
reduce credit risk exposure relative to what the credit exposure would be if the same counterparty were hable for
thair gross exposures on the same underlying contracts,
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Usually, netting arrangements are consttuted by a master netting agreement which specifies the general terms of
the agreement between the counterparties, including information on the basis of the netting calculation, types of
collateral, the defintion of default and ather terminabion events, the calculation of damages {on default) and
documentation reguied. The Master Netting Agreement contains the tenms and conditions by which all (of as many
as possible) relevant transactions bebween the counterparties are governed. Multiple individual transactions are
subsumed wunder this general master nelting agreement, farming a single legal contract under which the
counterparties conduct their relevant mutual business. In addition to the mitigation of credit rsk, placing individual
transactions under a single master netting agreement that provides for nething of transachans in scope akso helps
to mitigate settlement rsks associated with transacting in multiple jurisdictions or across multiple contracts.

26. Capltal management policy

The objective of the Company's capital management policy is to ensure that the Company has an appropriate level
of capital, being issued capital and issued medium term notes and borrowing from affiliates. The Company reviews
the approprate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate capital will take into conssderation the
financing needs and liquidity position of the Momura Group.

Mo changes were made in the objectves, policies or processes for managing capital during the year.

{Millions of JFY) As of
H March 2025 31 March 2024
Issued and paid-up capital 5284 B 386
Share premiurm 1321 1,321
Currency translation resane 118 35
Tetal issued capital 9,723 9723
Debt issued and cther borrowing 57 287 o0 870
« Non-current 53,230 92,979
- Current 4,057 5,900
Fimancial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss 670,241 801,316
- Mon-current 437 745 522730
- Current 232,405 275586
Borrawang from affiliates 149,045 1,336 509
- Mon-current - -
= Current 149,045 1,335,508
Total issued capital, medium term notes and borrgwing from affiliates BES, 295 2247 827

27. Related parties

Same as disclosed in elsewhere of thesa financial statements, the Company had the follewing material transactions
with related parties during the period.

a. Transactions with the parent

i, The Company entered into loan agreements with MHI and earned interest income of JPY 15,017 million
far the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: JPY 8955 million). As of 31 March 2025, the tatal
outstanding lcan to MHI amounted to JFY 400,000 milion (31 March 2024 JPY 1,465,600 milion). The
outstanding balance is unsecured. The Company has JPY 399,200 milion unsettled loan commitments to
MWHI a5 of 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: JPY 454, 300 million). As of 31 March 2025, there is no acorued
interest income from MHI i reperted under Other current assets (31 March 2024: JPY 1,016 millian).

ii. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with NHI, as one of the guasantors of the Company notes,
whereby the Company has agreed to pay a fee based on the average outstanding amount of the notes
duning the relevant caloulation penod. JPY 431 millicn guarantee fess were reparted under Fee and
commission expense for the year endad 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024; JPY 514 million). As of 31 March
2025, the guarantee fee payable to NHI B JPY 431 milbon (31 March 2024: JPY 514 milbon).

1i. In accordance with the transfer pncing docurmentation, JPY 8 676 milkon gain was reported under
Other operating gainf{loss) as of 31 March 2025 (21 March 2024; JPY 3,743 million gain), JFY 8678
million was accrued under Other assets as of 31 March 20235 (31 March 2024: JPY 3,743 millsan).

. The Company ncurred service fee of JFY 49 milion for MHI information technology infrastructure
suppart and other services for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024; JFY 54 million). This
expense is reporied under General and administrative expenses in the income statement. As of 31
March 2025, the service fee payable to NHI is JPY 19 million (31 March 2024: JPY 54 million).
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b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

Asof 31 March 2025, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from the Momura Group.
Mo remuneration to the managing direciors was chargeable to the Company for the years ended 31 March
2025 and 31 March 2024,

€. Transactions with other related parties

i, The Company entered into loan agreements with other related parties and eamed interest income of JPY
37,731 million for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: JPY 36,647 million). As of 31 March
2025, total outstanding loan to cther related partes amounted to JPY 491 184 milkon (31 March 2024:
JPY 808,231 milliea). All outstanding balances are wnsecured. The Company has JPY 547 452 millon
unsetiied loan commitrments to other related parties as of 21 March 2025 (31 March 2024; JPY 1,579,043
millsan). As of 31 March 2025, acerued interest inceme of JBY 1,601 millian from other related parties
5 reported under Other current assets (31 March 2024: JPY 2,829 million).

il. The Company entered into borrowing agreements with ather related parties and incumred interest expense.
Asof 31 March 2025, mterest expense from such agreements amownted to JPY 103,224 million (31 March
2024: JPY 70,834 mullion). As of 31 March 2025, accrued interest expense of JPY 1,034 milbon to other
related parties is reported under Other current liabilities (31 March 2024; JPY 9,475 million).

. The Company entered inte dervative fransachons with other related parbes under 1SDA Master
Agresments, Az of 31 March 2025, dervative fmancial assets and dervative financial lakiities with other
related parties amounted to JPY B3 814 milion and JPY 173,604 million, respactively (31 March 2024
derivative financial assets - JPY 155,764 million and dervative financial liabilites « JPY 142,285 milion)

iv. As of 31 March 2025, total cutstanding balance of debt issued by the Company held wathin the MNomura
Group for Byuidity or market making purposes amounted to JEY 20,399 million (21 March 2024: JPY
26,046 malon) of which JPY 100 million classified under Debt issued and other Barmowing (31 March 2024;
JPY 100 milbon) and JEY 20,289 million under Financial labilibes designated at fair value through profit or
loss (31 March 2024: JPY 25 848 million).

v. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with one of the related parties in the Momura Group, as
guarantors of the Company notes, whereby it has agreed o pay a fee based on the average cutstanding
amaount of the notes during the relevant calculation period. JFY 1 million guarantes fees were charged to
Fee and commission expense for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024; JPY 1 million), As of
31 March 2025, the guarantee fee payable of JPY 1 millicn & reported under Other current liabities (31
March 2024: JPY 1 million).

vi. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company incurred service fees amounting to JPY 97 million to
other related parties for provision of operational support which s repoted under General and
administrative ax penses in the income statement (31 Marnch 2024: JPY 106 milion). As of 31 March 2025,
the service fee payable of JPY 88 million to other related parties is reported under Cther current
liakdities (31 March 2024: JPY 80 million)

Wil

For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company incurred sanvice revenue amounting to JPY 132 million
from other related parties for operational support which is reported under Cther operating gainf{loss) in the
income statement (31 March 2024.0PY 108 million). As of 31 March 2025, the service revenue
recerable of JPY 132 milion from other related parties s reported under Other current assets (31
March 2024: JPY 108 million).

vin. The Company placesreceives cash collateral tofrom other related pares for dervative transactions and
incurred interest The Company eamed interest income amounting to JPY 221 million from the cash
collateral for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024; JFY 14 million), The Company incurred
interest expenses amounting to JPY 52 million from the cash collateral for the year ended 31 March 2025
{31 March 2024 JFY 31 million). As of 31 March 20235, the cash collateral paid of JEY 102,854 million &
reported under Other current assets (31 March 2024: JPY 88 208 million). As of 31 March 2025, the cash
g;lggml Tlene::'-red of JPY 6,030 milion is reported under Other current Babilites (31 March 2024: JPY
! millica),

28, Events after the reporting period

As af the date of this report, there have beéen no events subseguent to the year ended 31 March 2025 which
requires adjustments of, or disclosures in, these financial statemeants or notes thereto,
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28, Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management pRoposes 1o add the total gain for the year ended 31 Masch 20025 al JPY 1,305 millicn to the retained
earnings. This proposal has been reflected in the financial stalements.

OF July 2025

Managing Directors.

Kentara Kubota Kenichire Asana

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent auditor's report

Thee repart of the independent auditors, EY Accountants B.V.

Appropriation of result - Provision in the Com pany's articles of association

In accordance with Arbicle 20 of the Company's articles of associabion, the net result shall be free at the disposal of the
General Meeting
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x  (HSI
(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T): ©)
HSILI(T-1): m
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1) x
(TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1)  x Stamp Duty } ]

HSISI(T): m
HSISI(T-1): m
K:1
D(T,T-1): T T-1
HIBOR: 11 HIBOR
TRHSI(T):
TRHSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:
50

200
L(T) = L(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (S(T)/S(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

L(T): m 200

L(T-1) : m 200
K: 2

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

S(M): 200

S(T-1): 200

200
I(T) = I(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (F()/F(T-1) - 1) + (1 - K x M) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } ]

1(M): m 200

1(T-1) : m 200
K: -1

M:

D(T,T-1): T T-1

r: 91 CD

F(T): 200

F(T-1): 200
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m =
SPI_EHn = m S&P

SPI1_EHn1 = (m-1) S&P

SPI En = m S&P

SPI_En1 = (m-1) S&P

SPI_ELn1 = (m-1) S&P

HRn = m

Sn=m FC/LC
Fn=m FC/LC

SPI_EH:1 = SPI_EHo x SPI_E1 /SPI_Eo  HR:

SPI_EHn = SPI_EHn1 x  SPI _En /SPl Eni  HRn

HRn = (Sm—l/ Fm—l)—(Sm—l/ Sm)

m d=1,2,3, D
md m d m0 m-1
F Ind = m d

F Ind = Swd + (D-d)/D  x (Fnd - Snd)

SPI_EHnd = SPI_EHwo x  SPI_End /SPI_En0  HRud

HRn = (Sm / Fn )—(Sm / F_|md)
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t
Q) (-1 x 1
Q) (t-1)
x [1+ [Kx [ v/ (t-1) - 1] - (K-1)x /360 x D(t,t-1)] ]
K =
K=2, = 200

= TIBOR(T10003M)
Dt, t-1 =t t-1

C ) ( )(DJIA2LIP)
(DJIHIP) DJIA2LIP

DJIIA2LIP(L)=
DIIAZLIP(t-1)x[1+[2x[DIIHIP(t)/ DIIHIP(t-1)-1]-(2-1)x[T100031/360]xD(t,t-1)] ]

S&P

Kx [ t)/ (t-1) - 1]
+ (K+1)x ( /360)x D(t,t-1)
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NTRIXI(T) = NTRIXI

m Nifty50 @)
m Nifty50 @
m NIFTY 50  (
m NIFTY 50  (
m TREPS
( )
(T-1) x (1+ NTRIXI_RETURN)

1,000
1,256.38
NIFTY 50  ( )
NIFTY 50
( )
( )
)

NTRIXI_RETURN = -1x (NIFTY_TR(T)/ NIFTY_TR(T-1)-1) + 2x (TREPS(T-1) /360)x D(T,T-1) - (TREPS(T-1) /360)x D

(a,T-1)

NTRLX1(T)
NTRIXI(T-1)
NIFTY_TR(T)
NIFTY_TR(T-1)
D(T,T-1) T T-1

m Nifty50

M Nifty50
m NIFTY 50

m NIFTY 50
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EHmd = EHmO x (Emd / EmO + HRmd)

Emd = ELmd / Smd
HRmd = (SmrO / FmO - SmrO / F_Imd) x MAFm
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EL - S&P/JPX
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S :
F:
FiImd : m d
F Imd =Smd + ((D -d) /D) x (Fmd - Smd)
MAFm - m S&P/JIPX

MAFm = EHmrO / EHmO
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Global Market Share (%) = ¥ segment sales of all company within industry
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
21,620.88 23,103.58 14,274.76 10,441.55 9,206.35
11,776.79 11,890.75 4,536.61 4,913.83 4,142 .26
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
9,206.35 7,460.83 6,982.49 6,788.41 9,294.73 10,012.09
6,850.40 6,166.96 6,416.64 5,929.66 6,778.26 8,629.26
)
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
6,056.80 5,047.12 7,011.76 6,058.25 6,577.82
4,518.82 3,935.67 4,575.96 4,433.13 4,147.06
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
4,726.96 4,956.93 4,858.37 5,044.77 4,720.16 4,145.93
4,147.06 4,521.57 4,653.41 4,711.56 3,999.16 3,820.47
)
200
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
418.96 525.15 416.18 301.85 361.15
116.78 371.85 201.94 209.78 214.72
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
271.78 259.47 240.02 248.42 270.84 270.44
253.23 221.29 214.72 219.30 227.54 236.23
)
200
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
1,121.14 531.65 686.14 661.72 628.47
523.75 454.61 497.39 542.05 497.10
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
579.41 620.79 628.47 621.57 610.66 592.18
560.05 575.04 596.62 584.01 557.91 554 .43
)
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JPX
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
36,165.67 33,693.02 47,094.97 67,558.53 128,636.70
19,075.25 25,256.59 31,509.46 42,570.49 61,595.74
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
128,636.70 | 124,647.69 | 121,576.73 | 130,910.01 | 140,105.98 | 150,218.55
102,457.28 | 111,943.77 | 109,762.38 | 121,066.00 | 128,994.41 | 127,387.10
()
JPX
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
5,112.78 4,247.21 3,735.99 3,132.36 2,560.15
3,628.89 3,626.40 3,030.01 2,450.03 1,713.10
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
1,924.94 1,832.40 1,847.02 1,755.73 1,696.90 1,706.56
1,713.10 1,739.87 1,752.16 1,686.84 1,629.57 1,568.51
)
JPX
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2,336.99 1,307.79 3,247.08 3,369.21 4,036.96
149.37 395.31 1,168.96 1,433.19 2,027.97
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
2,830.81 2,820.32 2,906.75 3,326.29 3,056.24 2,773.21
2,273.54 2,535.96 2,463.29 2,919.88 2,618.63 2,348.15
()
JPX
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
7,784.36 3,360.20 1,648.11 1,058.27 757.48
3,287.23 1,643.32 821.09 639.46 551.41
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
698.08 649.09 657.28 599.65 629.55 662.77
622.64 618.49 603.11 562.34 584.60 608.34
)
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2,704.76 3,473.29 3,530.90 2,879.66 3,602.69
967.14 2,380.04 1,981.78 2,194.65 2,772.38
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
3,403.30 3,598.80 3,602.69 3,496.23 3,491.17 3,215.56
3,143.55 3,144.32 3,154.16 3,076.18 3,229.42 2,865.97
()
10
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
386.32 218.66 216.91 195.40 171.87
214.63 173.99 172.49 169.39 146.79
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
157.94 157.91 156.60 158.41 154.24 163.12
151.89 147.02 146.79 148.45 148.57 154.34
()
11 250
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
1,365.49 1,320.73 976.74 864.77 779.71
557.86 948.28 615.35 632.29 485.02
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
665.79 643.97 646.75 655.99 692.66 673.70
589.30 618.13 624.89 624.73 642.15 631.01
)
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12 STOXX 50
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
5,749.65 6,189.78 7,576.03 8,052.60 9,522.94
3,517.58 5,168.56 6,118.92 6,835.19 7,679.37
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
9,398.00 9,460.46 9,522.94 9,599.92 9,461.92 9,456.91
9,128.07 9,117.79 9,093.16 9,280.78 9,069.37 8,857.55
)
13 S&P500 ( )
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
645.54 804.44 808.33 814.44 928.37
388.46 630.89 661.05 707.72 791.79
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
925.69 928.37 925.34 892.61 895.33 899.26
886.90 888.91 854.44 838.86 870.27 860.34
)
14 S&P REIT  (
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
762.78 741.64 749.48 706.39 718.77
476.26 668.09 585.80 573.26 598.77
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
712.01 669.93 648.01 651.18 641.87 663.07
666.96 635.58 624.24 630.12 627.58 629.03
)
15 Nifty50 Q@ ( )
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
6,069.20 10,131.75 9,802.55 11,941.95 16,224.85
1,933.80 5,744.50 6,602.50 7,656.55 11,288.00
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
15,692.55 | 14,023.25 | 14,230.05 | 13,507.60 | 12,911.65| 12,706.95
13,714.05 | 12,714.15| 12,881.25| 11,963.80 | 11,159.95| 11,110.00
()
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16 Nifty50 ( )
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
519.00 279.90 246.30 228.15 189.05
272.85 205.95 202.45 183.80 156.45
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
170.25 176.70 175.50 182.10 188.45 188.90
159.10 168.20 167.00 171.45 175.20 176.70
)
17 70
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
44,346.51 49,647.93 55,066.87 77,870.80 100,375.37
30,206.25 38,674.20 45,283.17 53,233.67 75,093.25
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
96,486.75 | 98,138.18 | 100,235.01 | 100,392.58 | 100,583.89 | 105,338.73
92,477.94 | 93,824.65| 96,101.44 | 96,613.23 | 97,915.85| 99,477.97
)
18 S&P/IPX
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
278.637 322.778 355.329 496.938 630.772
194.636 261.267 292.716 344.999 494.940
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
603.959 617.892 630.772 626.466 630.061 654.859
587.267 597.271 614.250 603.751 615.695 628.559
)
19 REIT
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
5,536.668 5,700.644 5,564.628 5,670.667 5,808.470
2,884.009 4,482.509 4,853.520 4,959.712 5,200.898
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
5,654.311 | 5,599.678 | 5,599.880 | 5,810.067 | 5,834.496 | 5,955.827
5,549.329 | 5,497.996 | 5,411.491 | 5,531.744 | 5,646.282 | 5,644.002
)
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20 Al 70
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
34,553.13 41,869.65 43,087.00 55,227.12 65,644.94
23,397.85 33,320.78 35,806.38 39,444.72 49,662.58
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
63,196.12 63,206.51 64,132.72 63,809.82 63,791.02 65,243.94
60,618.97 60,338.31 60,991.62 60,853.98 62,103.87 61,819.59
()
21 30
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
23,226.87 29,726.88 31,227.54 40,082.58 50,266.57
12,760.43 23,236.82 25,384.19 29,110.54 35,557.68
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
46,991.66 46,845.34 47,804.06 47,775.31 47,878.59 47,328.84
44,622 .66 44,467.23 45,532.34 45,450.07 44,854.10 44,257.42
)
22 50
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
27,823.84 31,977.30 32,435.88 38,731.14 44,221.46
20,871.32 26,253.31 28,798.51 30,140.86 36,786.31
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
43,347.66 43,093.58 44,221.46 44,072.08 43,497.96 43,760.62
41,618.40 41,915.25 42,855.09 42,097.41 42,430.44 42,372.58
()
23
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
1,670.68 2,065.67 2,027.31 2,538.39 3,157.26
1,083.17 1,611.98 1,690.43 1,894.69 2,409.77
2024 2024 2024 2025 2025 2025
10 11 12
3,043.54 3,044.04 3,157.26 3,118.92 3,129.41 3,172.78
2,910.30 2,952.81 3,033.70 3,009.62 3,010.86 3,030.00
)
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2025 31
( EU-IFRSs )
2025 31
2025 31
Audit Firm Supervision Act (Vio
)
(VGBA
)
(
NHI ) 100%
NHI ( )

JDR
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0.5%
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| ndependent auditor ‘s report

To: the shareholder and managing directors of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

Report on the audit of the financial statementsfor the year ended 31 March
2025 included in the annual report

Our opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 of Nomura
Europe Finance N.V. based in Amsterdam, the Netherlands

We have audited the accompanying financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 of Nomura
Europe Finance N.V. based in Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Nomura Europe
Finance N.V. as at 31 March 2025 and of its result and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted in the European Union (EU-IFRSs) and with Part 9
of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:

The statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025

The following statements for the year ended 31 March 2025: the income statement, the statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows

The notes comprising material accounting policy information and other explanatory information

Basisfor our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht accountantsorganisaties
(Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the Verordening inzake de onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij
assurance-opdrachten (ViO, Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to
independence) and other relevant independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied
with the Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics for professional
accountants).

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

I nformation in support of our opinion

We designed our audit procedures in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in
forming our opinion thereon. The following information in support of our opinion and any findings were
addressed in this context, and we do not provide a separate opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Our understanding of the business

Nomura Europe Finance N.V. (the company) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Nomura Holdings, Inc. (NHI). The
company’s objectives are to assist NHI and its subsidiaries (together the Nomura Group) in such activities
such as raising funds from the global debt capital markets and providing funding for the Nomura Group
internationally. The company also issued medium-term notes in the form of Japanese Depositary Receipt (JDRs)
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange. Contractual due amounts of these notes may link to various indices. For
risk management purposes, the company uses derivative instruments with other entities within Nomura Group to
economically hedge the risk arising from the fluctuations of indices.
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We paid specific attention in our audit to a number of areas driven by the operations of the company and our

risk assessment.
We determined materiality and identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error in order to design audit procedures responsive to those risks and
to obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Materiality

Materiality JPY 3,638 million (31 March 2024: JPY 4,505 million)

0.5% of “debt issued and other borrowing” and “financial liabilities
Benchmark applied designated at fair value through profit or loss” as at 31 March 2025 (31
March 2024: 0.5%)

We have used “debt issued and other borrowing” and “financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss” as benchmark as we
Explanation believe the total balance of these accounts is the most important metric
for the users of the financial statements. We determined materiality
consistently with the previous financial year.

We have also taken into account misstatements and/or possible misstatements that in our opinion are material
for the users of the financial statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that misstatements in excess of JPY 181 million, which are identified
during the audit, would be reported to them, as well as smaller misstatements that in our view must be
reported on qualitative grounds.

Teaming and use of specialists

The company has operations in both Tokyo (Japan) and Amsterdam (the Netherlands). We have created an
integrated audit team and have audit team members performing the audit work in both locations. We ensured
that the audit team included the appropriate skills and competences which are needed for the audit of a
listed client in the banking industry. We included specialists in the areas of IT audit and income tax and
have made use of our own experts in the areas of valuations derivatives and other financial instruments
designated at fair value.

Our focus on fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations

Our responsibility

Although we are not responsible for preventing fraud or non-compliance and we cannot be expected to detect
non-compliance with all laws and regulations, it is our responsibility to obtain reasonable assurance that
the financial statements, taken as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Our audit responserelated to fraud risks

We identified and assessed the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements due to fraud.
During our audit we obtained an understanding of the company and its environment and the components of the
system of internal control, including the risk assessment process and the managing directors’ process for
responding to the risks of fraud and monitoring the system of internal control, as well as the outcomes.

We refer to section Objective and policy of risk management of the Managing directors’ report and note 23
Risk management to the financial statements for the managing directors’ risk assessment after consideration
of potential fraud risks.

We evaluated the design and relevant aspects of the system of internal control and in particular the fraud
risk assessment, as well as the code of conduct and incident registration at the Nomura group level. We
evaluated the design and the implementation and, where considered appropriate, tested the operating
effectiveness, of internal controls designed to mitigate fraud risks.

As part of our process of identifying fraud risks, we evaluated fraud risk factors with respect to financial
reporting fraud and misappropriation of assets. We evaluated whether these factors indicate that a risk of
material misstatement due to fraud is present.

We incorporated elements of unpredictability in our audit. We also considered the outcome of our other audit
procedures and evaluated whether any findings were indicative of fraud or non-compliance.

We addressed the risks related to management override of controls, as this risk is present in all
organizations. For these risks we have, among other things, performed procedures to evaluate key accounting
estimates for management bias that may represent a risk of material misstatement due to fraud, in particular
relating to important judgment areas and significant accounting estimates as disclosed in Note 2.2
Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions to the financial statements. We have also used
data analysis to identify and address high-risk journal entries and evaluated the business rationale (or the
lack thereof) of significant extraordinary transactions, including those with related parties.

When identifying and assessing fraud risks we presumed that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition.
We evaluated that net trading income on derivative financial instruments and the gain included in the Net
gain/(loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in particular give rise
to such risks. We describe the audit procedures responsive to the presumed risks of fraud in revenue
recognition in the description of our audit approach for the key audit matters Valuation of derivative
financial instruments and Valuation of financial instruments designated at fair value through profit and
loss.

We considered available information and made inquiries of relevant executives both in Amsterdam and Tokyo,
the managing directors and Nomura group’s internal audit, legal and compliance departments.

The fraud risks we identified, enquiries and other available information did not lead to specific
indications for fraud or suspected fraud potentially materially impacting the view of the financial
statements.

Our audit responserelated to risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations

We performed appropriate audit procedures regarding compliance with the provisions of those laws and
regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Furthermore, we assessed factors related to the risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our
general industry experience, through discussions with the managing directors, reading minutes, inspection of
Nomura group’s internal audit and compliance reports, and performing substantive tests of details of classes
of transactions, account balances or disclosures.
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We also inspected the lawyers’ letter and we have been informed by the managing directors that there was no

correspondence with regulatory authorities and remained alert to any indication of (suspected) non-
compliance throughout the audit. Finally, we obtained written representations that all known instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations have been disclosed to us.

Our audit response related to going concern

As disclosed in Note 2.1 Basis of accounting to the financial statements, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. When preparing the financial statements, the managing directors made a
specific assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to continue its operations
for the foreseeable future.

We discussed and evaluated the specific assessment with the managing directors exercising professional
judgment and maintaining professional skepticism.

We considered whether the managing directors’ going concern assessment, based on our knowledge and
understanding obtained through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, contains all relevant
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going concern.
IT we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion.

Based on our procedures performed, we did not identify material uncertainties about going concern. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause a company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. We have communicated the key audit matters to the managing directors. The
key audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection of all matters discussed.

In comparison with previous year, the nature of our key audit matters did not change.

The derivatives portfolio of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. comprises of non-listed
derivatives where the values are based on valuation techniques using both market
observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-market observable (mainly level 3
positions) inputs. The derivate financial instruments are measured at fair value through
profit and loss (net trading income/(loss) on derivative financial instruments).

Risk B, ) o , L . .
We consider the fair value of derivative financial instruments as disclosed in note 14
and note 24 to the financial statements a key audit matter due to the relative size of
the related accounts as compared to the financial position and materiality and given the
inherent complexity of the estimates with a resulting risk for incorrect valuation of
the derivative financial instruments. Moreover, we presumed risks of fraud in the
recognition of the net trading income on derivative financial instruments.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the
company’s accounting policies relating to the valuation of derivative financial
instruments in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement as well as current and/or
emerging industry practices and whether these have been applied consistently.

We have obtained an understanding of the derivatives valuation process, evaluated the
design and tested operating effectiveness of internal controls. This includes those
controls within the model validation process and the independent price verification
process that address the risk of material misstatement relating to management’'s
assessment of the significant inputs and estimates included in fair value measurement.
It also includes the testing of model performance and suitability controls in the
current market conditions.

Our audit
approach

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodologies and tested the most significant
valuation inputs by reconciling these inputs to independently sourced market data for
market observable inputs and other third-party sources for non-market observable inputs.
In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation adjustments relating to CVA and
DVA. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions held with the support
of our own valuation specialists.

Additionally, we evaluated the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Key Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of derivative
observations financial instruments in accordance with EU-IFRSs.
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Nomura Europe Finance N.V. issues financial liabilities which are designated at fair
value through profit or loss, where the values are based on valuation techniques using
both market observable (mainly level 2 positions) and non-market observable

(mainly level 3 positions) inputs. The net gain/(loss) on financial liabilities
designated

at fair value through profit and loss is included in the income statement.

We consider the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
Risk profit or loss as disclosed in note 20 and note 24 to the financial statements a key
audit matter due to the relative size of the account as compared to the financial
position and materiality, and given the inherent complexity of the estimates with a
resulting risk

for incorrect valuation of the financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit

or loss. Moreover, we presumed risks of fraud in the recognition of the gain included in
the Net gain/(loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the
company’s accounting policies relating to the valuation of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement as well as current and/or emerging
industry practices and whether these have been applied consistently.

We have obtained an understanding of the financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss valuation process and evaluated the design and tested operating
effectiveness of internal controls. This includes those controls within the model
validation process and the independent price verification process that address the risk
Our audit of material misstatement relating to management’s assessment of the significant inputs
approach and estimates included in fair value measurement. It also includes the testing of model
performance and suitability controls in the current market conditions.

Furthermore, we evaluated valuation methodologies and tested the most significant
valuation inputs by reconciling of these inputs to independently sourced market data for
market observable inputs and other third-party sources for non-market observable inputs.
In addition, we tested the accuracy of the valuation adjustments relating to own credit
risk. We performed independent testing on fair values of positions issued with the
support of our own valuation specialists.

Additionally, we evaluated the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

Key Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the valuation of financial
observations liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with EU-IFRSs.
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As disclosed in Note 2.3 (e) of the financial statements, Nomura Europe Finance N.V. is
required to record an impairment allowance for expected credit losses for the loans and
advances to affiliates. The impairment allowance is based on the expected credit losses
associated with the probability of default in the next 12 months unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case the allowance is
Risk based on the probability of default over the expected life of the instrument.

We consider the valuation of the loans and advances to affiliates as disclosed in Note
12

to the financial statements a key audit matter due to the size of the loans and advances
to affiliates and given that an impairment may have a material effect on

the company’s result.

Our audit procedures included, amongst others, evaluating the appropriateness of the
company’s accounting policies related to recognition of expected credit losses in
accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. We evaluated whether the accounting
policies and methods applied for making estimates have been applied consistently.

We have verified the valuation of loans and advances to affiliates by obtaining an
understanding of the impairment process and model. We assessed the impairment

Our audit methodology and expected credit loss calculation. We verified the criteria for

approach identifying significant increase in credit risk and tested the accuracy of internal
credit ratings.

We evaluated the determination of the probability of default including forward-looking
information. We evaluated management’s impact assessment for current and expected market
conditions on expected credit losses. Furthermore, we recalculated the impairment
allowance as per 31 March 2025.

Additionally, we evaluated the relevant disclosures for accuracy and completeness.

K Based on our procedures, we have no material findings on the impairment allowance
ey

) for expected credit losses for the loans and advances to affiliates in accordance with
observations

EU-IFRSs.

Report on other information included in the annual report

The annual report contains other information in addition to the financial statements and our auditor s
report thereon.

Based on the following procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:

Is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements

Contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code for the management report
and the other information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained through our audit of
the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the other information contains material
misstatements. By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is substantially less
than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financial statements.

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information, including the

management report in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code and other information required
by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Engagement

We were engaged by the managing directors as auditor of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. We are unable to
determine since which financial year we have operated as the statutory auditor, but we have operated as a
statutory auditor for at least 20 years.

Description of responsibilities regarding the financial statements

Responsibilities of the managing directors for the financial statements

The managing directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with EU-IFRSs and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the managing
directors are responsible for such internal control as the managing directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial statements, the managing directors are responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Based on the financial reporting framework mentioned,
the managing directors should prepare the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the managing directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so. The managing directors should disclose events and circumstances that may
cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the financial statements.

Our responsibilitiesfor the audit of thefinancial statements
Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means we may not
detect all material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures
and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgment and have maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit, in
accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements and independence requirements. The
Information in support of our opinion section above includes an informative summary of our responsibilities
and the work performed as the basis for our opinion.

Our audit further included among others:

Performing audit procedures responsive to the risks identified, and obtaining audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion

Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the managing directors

Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures

Evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation

Communication
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We communicate with the managing directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant findings in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We provide the managing directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the managing directors, we determine the key audit matters: those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, not communicating the matter is in the public interest.

Amsterdam, 7 July 2025

EY Accountants B.V.

signed by R. Koekkoek

202/202



	表紙
	本文
	第一部企業情報
	第１本国における法制等の概要
	１会社制度等の概要
	（１）提出会社の属する国・州等における会社制度
	（２）提出会社の定款等に規定する制度

	２外国為替管理制度
	３課税上の取扱い
	４法律意見

	第２企業の概況
	１主要な経営指標等の推移
	２沿革
	３事業の内容
	４関係会社の状況
	５従業員の状況

	第３事業の状況
	１経営方針、経営環境及び対処すべき課題等
	２サステナビリティに関する考え方及び取組
	３事業等のリスク
	４経営者による財政状態、経営成績及びキャッシュ・フローの状況の分析
	５重要な契約等
	６研究開発活動

	第４設備の状況
	１設備投資等の概要
	２主要な設備の状況
	３設備の新設、除却等の計画

	第５提出会社の状況
	１株式等の状況
	（１）株式の総数等
	①株式の総数
	②発行済株式

	（２）行使価額修正条項付新株予約権付社債券等の行使状況等
	（３）発行済株式総数及び資本金の推移
	（４）所有者別状況
	（５）大株主の状況

	２配当政策
	３コーポレート・ガバナンスの状況等
	（１）コーポレート・ガバナンスの概要
	（２）役員の状況
	（３）監査の状況
	（４）役員の報酬等
	（５）株式の保有状況


	第６経理の状況
	１財務書類
	２主な資産・負債及び収支の内容
	３その他

	第７外国為替相場の推移
	第８本邦における提出会社の株式事務等の概要
	第９提出会社の参考情報
	１提出会社の親会社等の情報
	２その他の参考情報


	第二部提出会社の保証会社等の情報
	第１保証会社情報
	１保証の対象となっている社債
	２継続開示会社たる保証会社に関する事項
	３継続開示会社に該当しない保証会社に関する事項

	第２保証会社以外の会社の情報
	１当該会社の情報の開示を必要とする理由
	２継続開示会社たる当該会社に関する事項
	（１）当該会社が提出した書類
	①有価証券報告書及びその添付書類又は半期報告書
	②臨時報告書
	③訂正報告書

	（２）上記書類を縦覧に供している場所

	３継続開示会社に該当しない当該会社に関する事項

	第３指数等の情報
	１当該指数等の情報の開示を必要とする理由
	２当該指数等の推移


	監査報告書

